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Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZRIG&RNEEER QA

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics
of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional
and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there
is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Megalogic
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
T E WS

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Megalogic
Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the first annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the financial year ended
31 December 2011.

During the year 2011, the Group continued its strategies to adopt a
light asset based, market-oriented, responsive business model,
which focuses on research and development and be an one-stop
integrated circuit (“IC") solution provider. The Group invests
continuously in the research and development of new IC products
and new IC models to broaden the Group’s product range and
bring innovation to the Group’s customers. The Group has already
launched 11 new IC models during the year 2011 and expects to
complete another 10 new IC models by 30 June 2012.

The Company was successfully spun-off from Kith Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1201) and listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange on 19 January 2012 (“Listing”). The
separate listing of the Company enhances the operational and
financial transparency of the Group, allows the Group to broaden
its shareholder bases and to improve capital allocation, and
provides fund raising platform to the Group to support its future
business development. Besides, the Group is able to offer an
equity based incentive program (such as a stock option or share
award scheme) to its employees that correlates directly to the
performance of the Group and is thus in a better position to
motivate its employees with incentive programs that closely align
with the objective of value creation for its shareholders.

In the longer term, the Listing has also laid a foundation for the
Group to develop alliance with its customers or other operators in
the market who share the same business objective and may
provide synergies to the Group in order to become one of the
major IC solution providers in Asia.

The Group would like to share more details of the Group’s
performance, financial position and other information in the year
2011 with shareholders in the following section of management
discussion and analysis.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
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FREHE(E)
On behalf of the Board, | wish to express my sincere thanks to our AAERERAEFESTeRHGEIERE K
management team, employees and business partners for their M - BEENEBREH—EHUREEREED
continuous dedication and commitment to the Group. Finally, | M LA o mB ANAZEEERELREE
would like to express my gratitude to the Group’s shareholders and EHAEERTH S REARUROHE -

investors for their continuous support and trust towards the Group.

Mr. Hui King Chun R R KT
Chairman FE
Hong Kong, 23 March 2012 2012943 A23H
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Management Discussion and Analysis
R ERENS &R

During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the Group is a
fabless semiconductor company specializing in provision of IC
solutions and is engaged in design, development and sales of ICs.
The Group sells IC under its own brand name “MiniLogic” and
provides application specific IC service (“ASIC Service”) in design
and development of tailor-made IC to its customers. The Group
has no production facility of its own, and outsources the production
process to specialist semiconductor subcontractors. The Group
provides tailor-made IC solutions and sells tailor-made ICs to
customers under the ASIC Service business segment (the “ASIC
Segment”); and independently develops and sells generically-
applicable ICs for sale in the market under the MiniLogic Brand IC
business segment (the “Standard IC Segment”).

Business Review
During the year 2011, the Group’s R&D teams completed and
launched 11 new IC models as follows:

Segment Product Name

7 8 EmEW

1 ASIC Segment MP1016 Miniaturized Single Time
Electronic Cigarette IC
MP1016 — K £ & FIE &R B

(48/)NMR)

ASIC 7 &8

2 ASIC Segment MP1003 Wireless Charging
Electronic Cigarette IC

ASIC % &6 MP1003 R X EXE T ERKER

3 ASIC Segment ML910 Dual Cell DVD Player Power
Management Unit IC
MLO10DVD#E MR B EM T E K

HEEKER

ASIC 53 &B

4 ASIC Segment ML912 Class D Audio Amplifier for
DVD Player IC

ASIC 5 &b MLO12DERTN R A2 E K B I

REZE2011F12A31HIEHHFE - &
Eh—HESEREEE G BMREMH
ERBEENBRIR THREEKRSEN
AT FE RIHE o AN B LA MiniLogic] B
MEEEERERTMERF RH &
AEERIEERNERNBETARERS
BRE([ASICRE) - AEBETEHEFE
HE O UTHBAEERRMNATEE L ERE
DERH AEERHEFITENERER
AT EARBASICREEBDANES
HEEFITENEKER(ASICH ) :
BN FEMiniLogic R E K EBR E B H &
BURBERHEELTBEAMERSEIUNE
MHHE (ZEEREER I -

¥ 7% B B
K201 EE R » A& B Hf 2 E B Tk I #
AR ERNERAEFOT

Period of development

B tHEH

November 2010 to January 2011 to present
January 2011

201011 A& 201MF1AES
20111 H

October 2010 to July 2011 to present
July 2011

20106F10A & 201MF7TAES
2011 7H

December 2009 to July 2011 to present
July 2011

2009F 12 A= 2011F7TAES
201157 AH

December 2009 to July 2011 to present
July 2011

2009 12H =
201157 H

Period of sale

2011F7AES



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEIEE St am ko T (&)

Segment
2 &R

5 ASIC Segment

ASIC 7 &B

6 ASIC Segment

ASIC 7 £B

7 ASIC Segment

ASIC 7 &b

8 ASIC Segment

ASIC 7 &8

9 ASIC Segment

ASIC 7 &8

10 Standard IC Segment

RESKER DB

11 ASIC Segment

ASIC 7 &8

Product Name

EmEH
Ai1003M CCD Vertical Clock Driver IC

AI1003M CCDE B FF$E e &) 25

MP1104 LED Backlight Driver IC

MP1104 LED % ¢ 8= &) 25 & 5k & %

MP1006 Miniaturized Rechargeable
Electronic Cigarette IC

MP1006 7t B = & 7 /& &£ 5k B I
(48 /)N )

ALB002 6 Channel Audio
Pre-Ampilifier IC

AL6002 7 #8 18 & B Al B PR 28
SR ER

AL3200 Single Cell DVD Player
Management Unit IC

AL3200 % E it DVD & M 88 BIRE 12
ERER

ML3406 Synchronous Step-Down
DC-DC Controller IC
ML3406 7 #B 4 B2 DC,DC % #l £8

AL2002 2-channel Audio
Pre-amplifier IC

AL2002 % i/ 78 = SR AT B UK 88
EXEE

Period of development

Annual Report 2011 & 07

Period of sale

B H HEH

October 2010 to July 2011 to present
July 2011

2010F10 A & 2011FE7AES
20114 7H

March 2011 to

August 2011 to present

August 2011

2011F3IAZE 2011F8AES
201148 A

May 2010to September 2011
September 2011 to present

20105 A & 2011FIRAES
2011F9H

November 2010 to September 2011
September 2011 to present

201011 A& 2011FIAES
2011F9H

July 2009 to November 2011
November 2011 to present

20097 A E 0MFMNAES
201111 H

November 2010 to November 2011
November 2011 to present

2010F11 A= 201MF1AES
2011411 A

August 2011 to November 2011
November 2011 to present

2011F8HZE
2011511 A

2011FE11AES

The Directors believe that developing IC products with suitable
technology that appeal to the market is the key to the Group’s
long-term success. Hence, developing new IC products and
expanding the range of the Group’s products as well as
broadening the customer base are essential for growth of the
Group’s IC solutions and design, development and sales of ICs
business.

ExHE HEERASERMEX WS
PHEREREMASAEERTRHARY
MBREE Fitt AEFEKEREMRM
EMAEEERNERARBERES ER
HERASEEXNERBRDRRRE
REREEEKERNEBHREEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIRE W Lo (E)

ASIC Segment

Under the ASIC Segment, the major IC products are Electronic
Cigarette ICs, CCD Surveillance System ICs and DVD Player ICs.
The Group recorded a remarkable growth in the year 2010 for the
ASIC Segment, which went into a natural process in market
adjustment in the year 2011. Although 10 new IC models were
launched in the year 2011, the increase in revenue for the new
model ICs was not sufficient to offset the decrease in revenue for
the older model ICs. The overall revenue of the ASIC Segment for
the year 2011 dropped by 20% to HK$43.7 million (2010: HK$54.4
million).

Standard IC Segment

Under the Standard IC Segment, the major IC products are Power
Management ICs, LCD Driver ICs for instrument panel and LED
Lighting Driver ICs. One new model IC was launched in the year
2011 to enrich the product range. With persistent marketing effort,
the Group expanded its sales network and received more demand
in the year 2011 for the Standard IC Segment. The overall revenue
of the Standard IC Segment for the year 2011 increased by 33% to
HK$15.4 million (2010: HK$11.6 million).

ASIC 7 Z

ASICHEBZEEERBETEEXEK -
CCDEER X 4 &£ ik B 1% KR DVDHE ik 25 &£ A
TR o ANEEEBIASICH BB 20104 F §% 15
AZEEER  ER20MMEEEATSAZN
AR ER - BE RO EEH L T105#
ERERME BERNERNERATNT
KEMAEABEHEREENERARTNE
SKORL A o ASIC 9 3F 2 88 It A R 2011 FF 8
T E0%E43.78 88 L (2010 : 5448
BET) -

BEEERERK D
EEEREEDBZEEERLSTRERE
EREE  HESREADLCORENEE/K
BENMIEDEXRERENELE - K20114F
B R TIRMERNERAG AL ER
175 REBR20MFEBEBHETESE
NERTZEERERSANEERK L
RMERZEFR - BEENEE DI 2 EE
WAR20M1FE EF T383%E1545 &5
(2010 M6AEEBTT) °
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
BEIEE St am ko T (&)

Summary of Consolidated Financial Information BAEMKERME

The following is a summary of the published results, assets and UTAEAREBZEZMERRLERE
liabilities of the Group for the last three financial years, as extracted M EFREMRARECEE- AT RE
from the audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as ERREXE EEREEHMEZ -AHEL
appropriate. This summary does not form part of the audited THEREZTBHREROEGD -

financial statements.

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLEE

2011 2010 2009

20115 20104 2009 4F

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FAET FAT

Revenue A 59,134 66,066 25,362
Profit after income tax K% BT 15 4 12 Y A 10,796 15,943 369
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) &RREARZEF] (EL) 7.2 10.6 0.2

As at 31 December

M12A318
2011 2010 2009
2011 5 20104F 2009 F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET FAETT
Total assets mEE 46,604 33,457 11,142
Total liabilities waE 3,293 10,942 4,742
Net assets BEFE 43,311 22,515 6,400
Financial Review B % [ B8

The Group recorded a total revenue of approximately HK$59.1 REBPR20MFEHFEWNRLS01ES
million for the year 2011 (2010: approximately HK$66.1 million), 7 70 (2010 + #966.1 80 B8 Ju) - 20104
representing a decrease of approximately 10% as compared with &) B bb 8R4 8910% o Br Lt B &% B R
that of the year 2010. On top of the reasons stated above, the Gh - B E B 1T E B F B A R BUM & S
increased competition in the IC industry and the debt crisis in EREEASEEMNT R ISAEAE

Europe had an impact on the demand for the Group’s products R0 FER B am TFE -

and on the drop in overall revenue of the Group for the year 2011.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIRE W Lo (E)

Cost of sales and gross profit

Cost of sales of the Group decreased by 7% from approximately
HK$39.3 million for the year 2010 to approximately HK$36.6 million
for the year 2011.

The overall gross profit of the Group decreased from approximately
HK$26.8 million in the year 2010 to approximately HK$22.6 million
in the year 2011, representing a decrease of 16%. The gross profit
of the ASIC Segment declined by approximately HK$5.3 million to
approximately HK$18.3 million in the year 2011 (2010:
approximately HK$23.6 million), and gross profit margin of ASIC
Segment was 42%, representing a slightly drop of 1% from that of
the year 2010, primarily due to a decrease in sales of higher
margin IC products in the relevant segment. The gross profit of the
Standard IC Segment increased by approximately HK$1.0 million
to approximately HK$4.3 million in the year 2011 (2010:
approximately HK$3.3 million), and the gross profit margin of
Standard IC Segment was 28%, same as that of the year 2010.

Expenses
Staff costs for the year 2011 increased by approximately HK$1.1
million, which was mainly due to the increase in headcount and
general pay level to cope with the need of business development
and listing.

Depreciation for the year 2011 increased by approximately HK$0.2
million, primarily due to the increase in purchase of instruments for
production of new IC products.

Other operating expenses for the year 2011 were approximately
HK$3.2 million (2010: approximately HK$2.1 million), representing
an increase of approximately HK$1.1 million from that of the
previous year, primarily attributable to the increase in professional
fee for patent application and handling as well as the increase in
license fee and royalty expenses for the use of intellectual
properties.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by
approximately 32% from approximately HK$15.9 million for the
year 2010 to approximately HK$10.8 million for the year 2011.

HERAREF
AEEMHHEEKABH2010F E 43935 &
BILTR7%E2011FEEL366EE BT -

AEBNEEEFNH20I0FEL268H &
BT THAE20MFEHN26BE BT &
8 A16% ° ASICH EE EFIR 2 £95.35 875
TTEH183B BB L (2010 #J23.6 8 &8
JL) - MASICH &8 8 E | E & 42% + #2010
FEMEKI% DEZARBRSETMNENE
RERERBEE TR - ZEEXRTEH I
EAEANIOBE B TLENIZEER T
(2010 : #493.3E BB L) - MIZE LK E I
D EBH)EF K 528% © E22010F Z R °

B X
BTRAR01MFEEENMIABEET
DEEHRABEHFER EFALNERE
BERNEWHE -

WERIR2011EEE NN 2BEEE T
DI EARENBE T AERIEAETFEK
BEREMR-

HZEERAI R0 EEBLYI2AEBT
(2010 : Y21 EBEB L) B LE—EAFEHE
MHGIIEEST NTEAREFNEEFR
FEBERNIXBHEN URKENHE
BERE SEBRETEMASI L

RATEE AEMLER

AR A AEAL & F B2010F E 4915.9
BEBITH A% E2011F E108FH &
BT e
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIRE W Lo (E)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

The Group generally financed its daily operations from internally
generated cash flows. As at 31 December 2011, the Group had
bank and cash balances of approximately HK$7.6 million (2010:
approximately HK$6 million) and did not have any borrowings,
banking facilities or any loan arrangement containing any
covenant. The gearing ratio calculated as the ratio of total interest-
bearing debt to total assets was 11.9% as at 31 December 2010 (31
December 2011: nil). Taking into account the cash reserves, the
net proceeds from placing upon Listing and recurring cash flows
from its core business, the Group’s financial position is healthy,
positioning the Group advantageously to expand its core business
and to achieve its business objectives.

Charges on Assets
As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any charges on
its assets.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in United States
dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to foreign currency exchange risk. The Group has not
implemented any foreign currency hedging policy at the moment.
However, continuous monitoring on the foreign exchange exposure
is carried out by the management and the management will
consider hedging against foreign exchange exposure risk if it is
significant to the Group.

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2011, 6 employees of the Group have
completed the required number of years of service under the
Employment Ordinance (Cap.57, Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“Employment Ordinance”), to be eligible for long service payments
on termination of their employment. The Group is liable to make
such payments where the termination meets the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance. These circumstances
include (i) dismissal by reasons other than serious misconduct; (ii)
being certified as permanently unfit for the present job and that the
relevant employee resigns; (iii) resignation when the relevant
employee is aged 65 or above; and (iv) death of the relevant
employee in service. If the termination of all such employees met
the circumstances set out in the Employment Ordinance, the
Group’s liability as at 31 December 2011 would have been
approximately HK$141,000. No provision has been made for these
amounts in the consolidated financial statements as the Directors
are of the view that these amounts are not expected to crystallize
in the foreseeable future.

nBES MEERRELAER

AEEB-—MUABEENESREREH
BEBREEES - R2011F12A31H » K
EENRTERREEHNA7T6EEB T
(2010%F : 96 A & /B T ) K I £ (T 7] {8 3¢ »
FBITHERFAAMNZENTANERL
PEo M20105F 128310 AEBHNEER
B E(ANBFTBEBHREENLXR) A
11.9% (2011F 12 A31H ) - KEER &
HWHE ETHEEMEFEFARKRAEE
BRLEBHEEUERSRE AEENH
BARAREE BAEBAGEBFIGH TR
FEZOEBTEREEFBIEZ -

EEEA
R2011F12A31H  AEB T ETMEE
AR o

S EE B B

AEENRSEITEUET BTRARK
FHE Bt AEBAXIIMNERR - AEE
BRYEBTERMMEEREREK - A &
BEFSEBEEMARNIIERR I8 R®
SMNERBRE AN REEEAZERETE T -

RZAREBREREE
R2011E12A318 - BB F H & % 1§ 0
(TREIEH]) CEPIES7E) NEB 264 (E
BERNERMANREEH WEERE
BIEBEEESRIARB S - WERLERFE
ERGOAEENBR AEEEBFEFTE
HZENK - ZEBREEONERETETT
BUNZEBERAWRE  (IBEEABKATHE
AHENEMLREENES SR (i)
EER65mak A LB R(VEBEE
RREHAESEE - H2BEREREREKILER
BOBRAAFEREGOIMEIE K&
B 2011F 12 A31H 2 B E# 5141,000%
T -AEEREBZESCEEBRTEREH
B BMREHUBEREATELRZED
RVEH B -

1
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIRE W Lo (E)

Saved as disclosed above, the Group had no contingent liabilities
or capital commitment as at 31 December 2011.

Significant Investments held, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries, and Future Plans for Material
Investments or Capital Assets

Save for those disclosed in this report, there were no significant
investments held by the Group as at 31 December 2011, nor were
there material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries by the
Group during the year. There is no plan for material investments or
capital assets as at the date of this report.

Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

The Group had approximately 15 (2010: 12) employees as at 31
December 2011. The total staff costs for the year 2011, including
directors’ remuneration, amounted to approximately HK$4.8 million
(2010: approximately HK$3.6 million). The Group’s remuneration
policies are in line with the prevailing market practice and are
determined on the basis of performance, qualification and
experience of individual employee.

We recognize the importance of a good relationship with our
employees. The remuneration payable to our employees includes
salaries and allowances. Other benefits include training and
discretionary bonus.

LA ERTI EE &SN NEER2011F 128
S1EERAEBEREARFE-

FBEXRE HELRANERKER
HEUARAREAREREXREESE

Br AR & T R A N R20119 128318
AEEBTEFFEARE FANENE
ARAMEAKRERHE -RAFREBH &
EEYEEFEARERELAEENAE

st

BE
EEINREGEE0MEI12A31BLEE
IR AT R ERRR B o

BE X FHEBUR

R2011F12A31H » REEBE4HF 154 (2010
F128)EE 2011EEMNEEIRA (B
REZEZHS) AH488E B8 T (2010F : 4
S6EBBIL) - ASBEMFINERFTAIRT
MHE  TREENEENKE -EEK
KERMET o

BPPEREEREYIRAFBEENER -
ENBEENFMEEFE KRR - HM1E
e REE R B BIEAL -



Annual Report 2011 & 13

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIRE W Lo (E)

Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual
Business Progress

An analysis comparing the business objectives as set out in the
Company's prospectus dated 30 December 2011 (“Prospectus”)
for the period from 23 December 2011, being the latest practicable
date as defined in the Prospectus (“LPD”) to 30 June 2012 (the
“Review Period”) with the Group’s actual business progress up to
31 December 2011 is set out as follows:

Business Objective for Actual Business Progress up to
the Review Period 31 December 2011

Enhancing product development by diversifying into new IC
products and improving existing IC products

Develop and launch 5 new MiniLogic Brand IC models
new MiniLogic under development, including
Brand IC models MP1110 24V LED Backlight Driver

with dimming control IC which
was sold to ASIC customer with
its development work in progress
during the Review Period

Develop and launch 5 new ASIC products under
new ASIC products development

Improve and launch 1 modified existing IC model under
modified existing improvement
IC models

Strengthening R&D capabilities by establishing a research and
development centre and sales office in Suzhou, the PRC

Establish Suzhou office Not yet commenced

Recruit new employees Not yet commenced
with engineering
expertise

Provide supporting Not yet commenced
services to Hong Kong
R&D team
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BIRE W Lo (E)

Expanding the customer base and sales network in the PRC

Formulate an marketing
plan to promote the
Group’s IC products
and ASIC service

Not yet commenced

Recruit new sales and
marketing staff

Not yet commenced

Explore and develop
new sales and
marketing network in
Suzhou region

Not yet commenced

Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the Company
under the placing as set out in the Prospectus were approximately
HK$24.3 million, which was different from the estimated net
proceeds of approximately HK$33.8 million (estimated on the
assumption that the placing price would be the mid-point of the
price range as stated in the Prospectus). We intend to adjust the
use of proceeds in the same manner and in the same proportion
as shown in the Prospectus, and approximately HK$11.9 million,
HK$10.7 million, HK$1.6 million and HK$0.1 million were adjusted
for i) enhancing product development by diversifying into new IC
products and improving existing IC products, ii) establishing a
research and development centre and sales office in Suzhou, the
PRC, iii) expanding PRC customer base and sales network, and iv)
working capital of the Group respectively. As at the date of this
report, we do not anticipate any change to the plan. During the
period from the LPD to 31 December 2011, there was no usage
made out of the net proceeds from the Listing. Since Listing, the
unused net proceeds have been placed as interest bearing
deposits with licensed bank in Hong Kong.
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Outlook
The Group was listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 19
January 2012 (“Listing Date”). The funds raised from the listing
have helped lay a solid foundation for the future development of
the Group.

We are cognizant of the uncertainty of the global economy. The
Group is optimistic and cautiously confident that the economy will
show slow growth momentum over the coming year. Nevertheless,
the profit margin of the Group's IC products may be pressurized
due to the anticipated increasing competition in the IC industry.
The Group will focus its future development on IC products for
“green energy” devices. One example is LED Lighting Driver ICs
for energy saving lighting appliances. Other than LED Lighting
Driver ICs, the Group will continue to explore other potential green
energy products. Besides the green energy products, the Group
will explore other new ASIC products that will be demanded by its
existing and new customers in order to expand its product and
customer base.

Looking forward, the Group will remain committed to the
development of our core business. Apart from enhancing product
development and strengthening R&D capabilities, the Group aims
to expand its customer base and sales network in the PRC. We
would actively make substantial progress to enhance growth and
strive for potential business opportunities to synergize with our
existing businesses and products.
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Corporate Governance Report
% E = #& t:ut

Pursuant to Rule 18.44 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present this corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2011. This report highlights the key corporate
governance practices of the Company.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group is committed to uphold high standards of corporate
governance. The Board considers that enhanced public
accountability and corporate governance are beneficial for the
healthy growth of the Group, improving customer and supplier
confidence and safeguarding the interests of shareholders of the
Company.

The Company adopted the provision of Appendix 15 Code on
Corporate Governance Practices of the GEM Listing Rules as its
own code (the “CG Code”) effective from 19 January 2012 (the
“Listing Date”) upon the listing of the Company and had complied
with the CG Code since then and up to the date of this report.

Directors Securities Transactions

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules effective from 19 January 2012
upon the listing of the Company. On specific enquiry made, all the
Directors have confirmed compliance with the Model Code since
its effective date up to the date of this report.
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Board of Directors

The Board is currently composed of eight Directors, one being
non-executive Director, three being executive Directors and four
being independent non-executive Directors as set out below.

Non-executive Director
Mr. Hui King Chun (Chairman)

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Kwei Chung (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Kam Lung

Mr. Liu Loi Ying

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Sun Kwong

Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson

Mr. Ko Yin Wai

Mr. Sung Tak Wing Leo

The profiles of the Directors are set out in the section “Profiles of
Directors and Senior Management” of this report.

As identified above, the roles of Board chairman and chief
executive officer are segregated and exercised by different
individuals in accordance with the CG Code. The chairman leads
the Board and provides advices to the Group in respect of the
overall strategic management and development of corporate
policy and strategy of the Group. The chief executive officer
executes strategies set by the Board and assumes daily
operations, research and development activities, procurement and
quality control of the Group and reports back to the Board on a
regular basis. The functions of the independent non-executive
Directors are primarily to bring an independent judgement on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources,
key appointments and standards of conducts at board meetings.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All the Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
are appointed for an initial term of one year and subject to
retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. At each annual general
meeting, not less than one third of the Directors then in office shall
retire and every Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Confirmation of Independence

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence by reference to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules and the Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors were independent during the
year.

Board Meetings Held and Attendance

The Company adopted the CG Code effective from the Listing
Date which requires regular meeting of the Board be held at least
four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals. The CG
Code was not applicable for the year and accordingly no statistics
on meetings held and attendance in respect of the year are
provided in this report. Two meetings of the Board were held after
the Listing Date.
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Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (“Audit Committee”)
on 23 December 2011 with written terms of reference that are in
conformity of the requirements of the CG Code. The Audit
Committee is currently composed of the four independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, Mr. Chan Chi
Kwong Dickson, Mr. Ko Yin Wai and Mr. Sung Tak Wing Leo, and
chaired by Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, who has appropriate professional
qualifications and experience as required by the GEM Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include the
following:

(a) monitor and ensure a proper relationship with the Company’s
auditor;

(b) review of the Group’s quarterly, interim and annual reports
and compliance with accounting standards, the GEM Listing
Rules, and legal requirements before submission to the
Board; and

(c) oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and
internal control system.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year and recommended approval to the Board.

The Audit Committee did not come into effect until the Listing Date
and accordingly no meetings had been held during the year. One
meeting of the Audit Committee was held after the Listing Date to
review the final results and financial statements of the Group for
the year, and the 2011 Annual Report of the Company.

EREE®
ARABIR2011F 128238 RIBHRZEL B
(BZZEg]) TEHEFALEE RS
A EMEABES®EE EZEZE A
WEBYFNTESEN BERE XL
EBREALTE BBERLERRELE
A WHREXRTERTERE  mAHFEAZE
RETMRANBRENBEZEERRER -
ERZEENIEBRERBEUTSE

4} g

() ERYBREARBZBEHNBEER

(b) RREXREEQCHEHAEENETE -
PN FESRE UARNEBETF 2 E
Bl - BIZER EMABREEBCHIE
oo &

(c) BEBARAMPBHBEREFMAEE

REM -

ERZECLEHNASRENAEERLER
MsmE LEBEZGHE -

EZZEgRN EMAMBATHARKL - R
REEVTEBTERNEH BERZEER
FTRBBRRERIT AR UEHAFE
WREBIZEE NPT BHRE - A KRARQF2011
FEIR -



20 Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZRIG&MNEEER QA
T ————

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

EERERME (B)

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) on 23 December 2011 with written
terms of reference effective from the Listing Date. The
Remuneration Committee is currently composed of the four
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Sun
Kwong, Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson, Mr. Ko Yin Wai and Mr.
Sung Tak Wing Leo, and chaired by Mr. Chan Sun Kwong. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to the Directors and senior management
and to make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and senior
management. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are in conformity with the requirements of the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee did not hold any meeting during the
year before the Company was listed. One meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held after the Listing Date.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) on 23 December 2011 with written terms of reference
effective from the Listing Date. The Nomination Committee is
currently composed of the four independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, Mr. Chan Chi Kwong
Dickson, Mr. Ko Yin Wai and Mr. Sung Tak Wing Leo, and chaired
by Mr. Chan Sun Kwong. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the
Directors. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
in conformity with the requirements of the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee did not hold any meeting during the
year before the Company was listed. One meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held after the Listing Date.
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EERERME (B)

Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is overall responsibility for
maintaining an adequate and effective internal control system of
the Group. The Group’s internal control system includes a well
defined management structure with limits of authority which is
designed for the achievement of business objectives, to safeguard
the Group’s assets against unauthorized use and disposition, to
ensure compliance with relevant legislation and regulations, and to
protect the interests of shareholders of the Company.

With the view of enhancing the Group’s internal control system,
prior to listing, the Company has appointed KL CPA Limited, an
independent internal control advisor, to assist the management in
assessing the Group’s internal control systems and recommending
actions to improve our internal controls.

The Group’s external auditor, Graham H.Y. Chan & Co., contributes
an independent perspective on relevant internal controls arising
from the audit and report findings to the Audit Committee.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the Group was charged HK$400,000 for auditing
services and HK3nil for non-auditing services by the Company’s
auditor, Graham H.Y. Chan & Co. The Group also paid to the
Company's auditor, Graham H.Y. Chan & Co. of HK$2,002,400 for
listing service in the year.

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of
the Group’s financial statements to give a true and fair view. The
responsibilities of auditors in respect of the financial statements
are set out in the reports of the auditors forming part of this Annual
Report.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management
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Directors

Non-executive Director

Mr. Hui King Chun, aged 61, is the Chairman of the Company. He
was appointed as a non-executive Director on 15 June 2011. Mr.
Hui has been a director of one subsidiary of the Company,
MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited, since February 2007 and is
also a director of all of our subsidiaries. He provides advices to the
Group in respect of the overall strategic management and
development of corporate policy and strategy of the Group, without
participating in the daily management of the Group. Mr. Hui is
currently the chairman and an executive director of Kith Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1201). He is the largest shareholder of Kith
Holdings Limited. Mr. Hui has over 32 years of experience in
management and manufacturing, including about 18 years of
experience in printing and packaging industry.

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Kwei Chung, aged 42, is one of the founders of the Group,
chief executive officer, engineering director and compliance officer
of the Company. He was appointed as an executive Director on 15
June 2011. Mr. Li has been a director of one subsidiary of the
Company, MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited, since September
2004 and is also a director of all of our subsidiaries. He is
responsible for daily operations, research and development
activities, procurement and quality control of the Group. Mr. Li
obtained a bachelor’s degree of Engineering and master’s degree
of Science in Engineering from the University of Hong Kong in
1992 and 1998 respectively. He has over 17 years of experience in
the semiconductor field. Mr. Li was appointed as a member of the
Information and Communication Technology R&D Centre
Technology Review Panel of ASTRI for the years of 2011 and 2012.
His responsibilities includes advising ASTRI on improving the
quality of ASTRI's R&D projects in terms of technical merit as well
as the commercialisation prospects and technology transfer
potential of the projects and assisting in evaluating the
effectiveness of funded projects in terms of assisting Hong Kong
and Pearl River Delta based companies’ to upgrade their
technological competitiveness.
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Mr. Liu Kam Lung, aged 48, is a finance director and the
company secretary of the Company. He was appointed as an
executive Director on 31 March 2011. He joined the Group as a
director of one subsidiary of the Company, MiniLogic Device
Corporation Limited, in February 2011 and is also a director of all
of our subsidiaries. Mr. Liu is responsible for accounting and
finance management, investor relation as well as company
secretarial matters of the Group. He has been a non-executive
director of Kith Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1201) since October
2010. Mr. Liu obtained a Diploma of Business Administration from
Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong Shue
Yan University) in 1990 and is currently an Associate of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, an Associate of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators of the United
Kingdom, an Associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a full member of the Society of Registered Financial
Planners and an Associate of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong.
He has over 21 years of experience in the financial industry.

Mr. Liu Loi Ying, aged 34, was appointed as an executive Director
on 15 June 2011. He is a director of one subsidiary of the
Company, Minilogic Investment Limited. Mr. Liu has been a R&D
product manager and one of the team leaders in the R&D
Department of one subsidiary of the Company, MiniLogic Device
Corporation Limited, since joining the Group in July 2003. He is
responsible for leading a team of engineers in R&D operations,
and supporting sales and marketing activities. Mr. Liu obtained a
bachelor's degree of Engineering in Computer Science and
Computer Engineering and a master’'s degree of Science in IC
Design Engineering from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in 2001 and 2005 respectively. He has been
working in the semiconductor field for about 10 years.

BEEXE 485 BARAINMBEER
NEIME - bR 2011E3A3IBEZ T AH
TEE - BEEER0MMF2AMARNEER A
AAr—HEHBARMASRARAFN
BEE NARMSHEBARMNES -BiLE
BEehMEERE REEHEERLASE
EHMARIWEEHE (L B2010F10H B H
ITEREEER QR MR 1201) 1
EMITESF - B ENI190F EFBH
BlIR(RBAEEHLCARKB)ERIBER
XER BREAESSHMASTETE KB
FWERTRAEBERASEE BAEBHW
EQNECE BRI HIMATERS
B My BREAMHT EXNKERES
RMEE2ee8 MWREMEBRIFLER -

BRELE 345 N2011F6F15HEX
FEAATES - FARART —HWERQR
Minilogic Investment Limited 8 & = » B % 4
B2003F7HRMAREB /AR F —H
MEBARMA S ERARNHEERK
BRETNEP -—CEHREE - HER
HE—ZIREMEBRETHEIE UK
TIERBEEREHEIEE - B L AENR2001F K
2005 FEF BRI KE DRI B EGTEHE
BRAEHRTIREBLTBMREREEERE
IRELTEM RN FEEEITETIELNI
& o

23



24

Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZRIG&MNEEER QA

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 23 December 2011. He is the company
secretary of Powerwell Pacific Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
8265). Mr. Chan obtained a Diploma of Business Administration
from Hong Kong Shue Yan College (now known as Hong Kong
Shue Yan University) in 1990. He is currently a fellow of The
Chartered Association of Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators in the United Kingdom. Mr. Chan has about 20
years of auditing, accounting and company secretarial experience.
He is currently the chairman of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson, aged 40, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 December 2011. He is
currently a practising certified public accountant. Mr. Chan
obtained a master's degree in corporate finance from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2004. He is currently a fellow of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Chan has
been working in accounting field for about 13 years. He is currently
a member of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee.

Mr. Ko Yin Wai, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 23 December 2011. He currently is an
enterprise consultant for Dongguan Changping Qiaohui Lipeng
Plastic & Hardware Manufacturing Company* ((R 52 % F1& EEN 522
BReRMM) and a marketing strategic consultant for Shenzhen
Lanshuo Communication Equipment Company Limited* (JF&3IT &
EEANEREARAR]). Mr. Ko has been working in the electronic
consumer products industry for about 15 years. He is currently a
member of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination
Committee and the Audit Committee.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)

EENEREEABNEE (&)

Mr. Sung Tak Wing Leo, aged 51, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 December 2011. He
currently is the managing director and a responsible officer of
King’'s HT Securities Limited, a licensed corporation under the
SFO. Mr. Sung has been appointed as a Senator of Junior
Chamber International since 2005. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree of Commerce in Management and Marketing from Curtin
University of Technology in Australia in 2002. Mr. Sung has been
working in the securities industry for about 9 years. Before entering
into securities industry, He worked for several solicitors’ firms in
Hong Kong for about 17 years. Mr. Sung is currently a member of
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Audit Committee.

Senior Management

Ms. Tong Suk Fun Sabrina, aged 48, is one of the founders of the
Group. She has been a director and the personnel and
administration director of one subsidiary of the Company,
MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited, since January 2000. Ms.
Tong is responsible for personnel and administration management.
She worked as HR and Administration Manager of a company for
the period from January 2000 to June 2003.

Mr. Lam Nim Yin, aged 52, has been the marketing director of
one subsidiary of the Company, MiniLogic Device Corporation
Limited, since joining in March 2007. He is responsible for sales
and marketing activities, logistic and warehouse control. Mr. Lam
has been working in semiconductor industry for about 24 years.
During the period from 1993 to 2009, he served as a director of a
company engaging in trading of electronics such as IC.

Mr. Tsang Hing Yeung Anthony, aged 33, has been a R&D
product manager and one of the team leaders in the R&D
Department of one subsidiary of the Company, MiniLogic Device
Corporation Limited, since joining the Group in September 2002.
He is responsible for leading a team of engineers in R&D
operations, and supporting sales and marketing activities. Mr.
Tsang graduated from The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in 2001 with a bachelor's degree of Engineering in
Computer Science and Computer Engineering. He further obtained
a master’s degree of Science in IC Design Engineering from the
same university in 2005. Mr. Tsang worked as an IC Designer for a
company from 2001 to 2002. He has been working in the
semiconductor field for about 10 years.
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENEREEAENERE (&)

Company Secretary ARAME
Mr. Liu Kam Lung is the company secretary of the Company. For BEEEEAARFNARWE - BREM
details of his profile, please refer to the paragraph headed MNEREE BLRHEASHHITES|—K -

“Executive Directors” under this section.

Compliance Officer EEIE
Mr. Li Kwei Chung is the compliance officer of the Company. For ZHERAEELAARNINERET - BRM
details of his profile, please refer to the paragraph headed MEREFE  m2HAHIATES|— K-

“Executive Directors” under this section.



Directors’ Report
EEEWE

The directors (“Directors”) of Megalogic Technology Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2011.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 35 to the financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

Change of Name of the Company

By a special resolution passed on 27 April 2011, the name of the
Company was changed from “Megalogic Holdings Limited” to
“Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZR&IEEI LB HR AR

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages
36 to 104.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEgHE(F)

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of the
Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2011.

Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in pages 40 to 41 in this
report and note 29 to the financial statements.

Distributable Reserves of the Company
The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2011 was nil.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The approximate percentages in respect of the Group’s sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and suppliers
respectively during the financial year are as follows:

The largest customer BREF

Five largest customers in aggregate AREFAG
The largest supplier &AHEER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AREEEES

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were as follows:

Non-executive Director
Mr. Hui King Chun (appointed on 15 June 2011)

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Kwei Chung (appointed on 15 June 2011)
Mr. Liu Kam Lung (appointed on 31 March 2011)
Mr. Liu Loi Ying (appointed on 15 June 2011)
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEgHE(F)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Sun Kwong (appointed on 23 December 2011)

Mr. Chan Chi Kwong Dickson (appointed on 23 December 2011)
Mr. Ko Yin Wai (appointed on 23 December 2011)

Mr. Sung Tak Wing Leo (appointed on 23 December 2011)

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Mr. Liu
Kam Lung, Mr. Hui King Chun and Mr. Li Kwei Chung will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Directors and Senior Management
Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group are
set out on pages 22 to 26 of this report.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The Company’s policy concerning the remuneration of the
Directors is that the amount of remuneration is determined by
reference to the relevant Director's experience, responsibilities,
workload, the time devoted to the Group and remuneration
packages for positions with similar capacity and responsibilities in
the market.

Remuneration of Directors and Five Individuals with
Highest Emoluments

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five individuals with
highest emoluments are set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

Retirement Benefit Schemes
Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out
in note 30 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEgHE(F)

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any Associated Corporation

As at the date of this report, the interest of the Directors and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules were as follows:

Long positions
Ordinary shares of the Company

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest

ExEE B0 HEEE

Mr. Hui King Chun
AR L RyEHDEBE S (H i)

Beneficial owner
EmEA A

Mr. Li Kwei Chung
FHBELSE

Note: These shares are beneficially owned by Kith Technologies Limited,
which is wholly owned by Kith Enterstand Limited; Kith Enterstand
Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kith Limited, which is wholly
owned by Kith Holdings Limited; Mr. Hui King Chun has an indirect
interest of 61.58% in Kith Holdings Limited.

Interest of a controlled company (Note)

EERBELN
BREBRTZERRBEFAELBREL
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Eay NN

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the issued
issued ordinary  share capital of
Shares held the Company
EERF

FEe T EBITRAE
EEREE WEDHL
78,018,829 39.01%
11,762,842 5.88%

KiE © #% % B 1% B Kith Technologies Limited & %%
% & - £ fKith Enterstand Limited & & #
A  Kith Enterstand Limited 52 Kith Limited
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
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Share Option Scheme
As the date of this report, the Company did not have any share
option scheme.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders Interests in Shares

As at the date of this report, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that, other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors, the
following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant
interests in the issued share capital of the Company.

Long positions
Ordinary shares of the Company

Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest

IR & 50 HEtE

Kith Technologies Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1)

REsAEES (AaE1)

Kith Enterstand Limited
RS EE e (1)

Kith Limited
R EEES (A1)

Kith Holdings Limited
BEEBEBR QA REHEE S (M A1)

Richly Global Investments Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2)
Exn#EB AR i72)

Interest of a controlled company (Note 1)

Interest of a controlled company (Note 1)

Interest of a controlled company (Note 1)
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78,018,829 39.01%
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31



32 Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZRIG&MNEEER QA

Directors’ Report (Continued)

EEERE(#E)

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the issued
issued ordinary  share capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest Shares held the Company
EOR R NN
Fris e 817 EEITRAE
RERE®E B EEME HEEREE ME D
Mr. Cheng Tun Nei Interest of a controlled company (Note 2) 27,489,276 13.74%
BERLEE REsEEERE (HiE2)
China Angel Fund Beneficial owner 12,500,000 6.25%
EmEA A
Ms. Tong Suk Fun Sabrina Beneficial owner 11,762,842 5.88%
Bt EnEA A
Note: Wizt -
1. These shares are beneficially owned by Kith Technologies Limited, 1. & E 19 B Kith Technologies Limited & & #

which is wholly owned by Kith Enterstand Limited; Kith Enterstand
Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Kith Limited, which is wholly
owned by Kith Holdings Limited.

2. These shares are beneficially owned by Richly Global Investments
Limited, which is wholly owned by Mr. Cheng Tun Nei.

Connected Transactions

During the year, except for those disclosed in note 33 to the
financial statements, the Group did not have any transaction with
its connected parties.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association, or the laws of Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float since its shares became listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange on 19 January 2012 and
up to the date of this report.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEgHE(F)

Interest in a Competing Business

As at the date of this report, none of the Directors, the controlling
shareholders of the Company and their respective associates (as
defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any interest in any business
which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which
any such person has or may have with the Group.

Corporate Governance
A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 16 to 21 of this report.

Interests of the Compliance Adviser

As notified by the compliance adviser of the Company, Ample
Capital Limited, as at 31 December 2011, except for (i) Ample
Capital Limited’s participation as the sponsor in relation to the
Listing; and (ii) the compliance adviser agreement entered into
between the Company and Ample Capital Limited dated 29
December 2011, neither Ample Capital Limited or its directors,
employees or associates had any interest in relation to the Group.

Events after the Reporting Period
Details of material subsequent events of the Group are set out in
note 34 to the financial statements.

Auditor

During the year, Graham H.Y. Chan & Co. was appointed as
auditor of the Company. A resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint
Graham H.Y. Chan & Co. as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Hui King Chun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report
J8 N Az BLAD R

Fa5g| GRAHAM H.Y. CHAN & CO.

=]

#&ati£| CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
FIETE]| HONG KONG

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
MEGALOGIC TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 36 to 104,
which comprise the consolidated and the Company’s statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Bz BN s ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence BRI LR TERFANERZSHEAS TR
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial REHSHELEEEERNNEZREBE - TE
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's THRFECRRZE M HE - 2T
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material AR ERMERZERAM B HRE
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether FEERERBLAMNER FEFEHZER
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor S REMEZREZAIGELEETM
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of N Y SR AR A B RS R 2R A BE MY R 30 i
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in #l - ARFREATEHENEZET  BIX
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the EAEE AR ANIBEEI N REEERER -
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion BEZNEREITEEEMEANSTRERN
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also SEMRFIEHO M EEN - N
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies R EHREVBEmROEEI®AR -

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient X 1% CEEESHNERRERAR
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. MEEHAESNERE RIZHER-
Opinion ER

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true EERE ZERAUBBRRERERS
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the R REENEEMAFHRE &2 7
Group as at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash & EEER2 011 F12H31B B RN
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the Hong Kong Y EEBEEEZBLEFEMNGEMNRERS
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared mE TEXEBREESARAKIMNEBEERT
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong HERE o

Companies Ordinance.

Graham H.Y. Chan & Co. PREEEMEHAT

Certified Public Accountants (Practising) HESA

Unit 1, 15/F., The Center, FE

99 Queen’s Road Central, IR 2R KREF 9

Hong Kong FIRFALIGBIE

23 March 2012 20124 3 H23H
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

fre M|l

For the year ended 31 December 2011

B Z=2011412 431 HIFEE

Revenue

Cost of sales of integrated circuits
and provision of integrated circuits
packaging service

Gross profit

Other income

Staff costs

Depreciation

Impairment loss on property, plant
and equipment

Operating lease rental — land
and buildings

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Profit attributable to shareholders

Other comprehensive income:
Surplus arising on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax effect on surplus arising
on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment

Other comprehensive income for
the year

Total comprehensive income for year

Earnings per share
Basic

Diluted

i 2
HESRKER RIEMH]
fa B IR B A

EZR

H AU A

B TR

e

W% BEMRE
BEEE
KeMElHe — TR
BF

H Qe

BB KA

B FT 15 % Al 38 7
ST X

FEBA

[EY R
Htt2mkas:
REEGYME  BE X
AR A

KEER/RYE BE M

AR B R VIR TR
2

FEHEMEEYE

FEZEHWZAE

BRER

BN

8

2010
20104F
Notes HK$
Mt aF BT
8 59,133,720 66,065,552
(36,551,314) (39,253,838)
22,582,406 26,811,714
3,386 312
(4,764,390) (3,646,118)
(1,254,778) (1,105,912)
— (383,025)
(369,565) (369,565)
(3,189,694) (2,148,828)
10 (8,640) (65,412)
12,998,725 19,093,166
11 (2,202,613) (3,150,321)
12 10,796,112 15,942,845
14 10,796,112 15,942,845
— 206,780
— (34,118)
— 172,662
10,796,112 16,115,507
16
HK7.20 cents HK10.6 cents
AL eIl
N/A N/A
TEA TEA
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A AR R R

As at 31 December 2011

R20114F12H31H
2010
20104
Notes HK$
M aF BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WE NEE 17 3,442,903 2,550,400
Current assets REBEE
Inventories =g 18 3,972,240 9,571,320
Trade receivables U E B R 19 20,380,653 12,612,440
Deposits and prepayments e RIEARIE 20 10,182,353 2,827,626
Tax receivable & R 18 990,901 =
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRIR e 21 7,634,545 5,995,208
43,160,692 30,906,594
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables to ERNE=ZEZ2BFH K
third parties H fth JE T BR K 22 2,753,725 2,191,464
Trade payable to a fellow subsidiary FEN—ERRMNBRRZ
B 5 R 23 — 1,389,863
Amount due to an intermediate JER—ME P EERA R Z
holding company E @z 24 — 134,000
Advance from Innovation and RERFEHES ZEXK
Technology Fund 25 — 398,480
Bank borrowings AT 1B K 26 — 3,991,011
Tax payable FE S 18 — 2,448,337
2,753,725 10,553,155
Net current assets EBREBEE 40,406,967 20,353,439
Total assets less current liabilities HWEERRBERS 43,849,870 22,903,839
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
e MR K (&)

As at 31 December 2011

R2011F12H31H
2010
20104F
Notes HK$
Bt &t T
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFTA B & 27 538,830 388,911
Net assets BEE 43,311,040 22,514,928
Capital and reserves EXREE
Share capital fi% 25 28 380,000 6,249,027
Reserves e 29 42,931,040 16,265,901
Total equity DA 43,311,040 22,514,928
Li Kwei Chung Liu Kam Lung
ZHE B
Director Director

EF EF
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Statement of Financial Position
B ISR R &

As at 31 December 2011

R2011F12H31H
2010
20104F
Notes HK$
Bt & BT
Non-current assets RBEE
Investment in a subsidiary BER—HEHERQ A 35 8
Current assets REEE
Prepayment TEAS RIE 248,970
Amount due from a directly R —HEEFED
owned subsidiary Bt B8 A Rl 89 5K 1B 35 380,000
Bank and cash balances RITRIRS &R 231,547
860,517
Current liabilities REEE
Amount due to an indirectly owned A —EEEEEN
subsidiary Bt B8 A Rl 89 5RIB 35 510,000
Other payables o {th jE - 0B 310,756
820,756
Net current assets BARBEE 39,761
Net assets REE 39,769
Capital and reserves EXRf#EE
Share capital R% 72X 28 380,000
Accumulated losses Kt EiE 29(b) (340,231)
Total equity EREE 39,769
Li Kwei Chung Liu Kam Lung
R BaiE
Director Director
= £
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AN &/
:2\‘\/ =) 1’% m & @J 2%
For the year ended 31 December 2011

B Z2011F 12531 HILFE
Retained
Assets profits/
Share Share Merger revaluation (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses) Total
BE RERF
kx ROEE AHRFEE 2 E4RE (RIFAES) =
Note Note 29
(o Htzt29
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Kz BT BT BT BT BT BT
At 1 January 2010 R2010F181H 6,249,027 2,072,527 — — (1,922,133) 6,399,421
Profit for the year EFERFH — — — — 15,942,845 15,942,845
Other comprehensive income Hi2mE k=
Surplus arising on revaluation of REER-DE  BE
property, plant and equipment B0k — — — 206,780 = 206,780
Deferred tax effect on surplus KEEGDE KR
arising on revaluation of R EBHET
property, plant and equipment REZE — — (34,118) — (34,118)
Total comprehensive income 2HKRHEAHE — — 172,662 15,942,845 16,115,507
At 31 December 2010 and R2010512A31H
1 January 2011 %201151A1AR 6,249,027 2,072,527 — 172,662 14,020,712 22,514,928
Profit for the year EERA — — — 10,796,112 10,796,112
Other comprehensive income =T = — — = —

Total comprehensive income 2EWBAHE — — — — 10,796,112 10,796,112
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

- HE N/ gy =
MEERnEER(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2011

HE2011F12A31HIEFE
Retained
Assets profits/
Share Share Merger revaluation (accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses) Total
BE RERER/
BA  ROEE SHFEE E4REE  (RFER &t
Note Note 29
Btz Htzt29
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Bt it AT BT BT BT BT BT
Transactions with owners BERTAZRS
Allotment and issue of consideration MR RETRE  28(a-b)
shares and credited as fully paid for B3 & A BRFIVES 2
share swap 380,000 —  (380,000) — — —
Share allotment of MiniLogic HK malm Rz B be B 1,402,173 8,597,827 — — — 10,000,000
Exchange of share upon group SESsHEZKRNER 28(a-b)
reorganization (7,651,200) (10,670,354) 18,321,554 — — —
Total transactions with owners HERAZRZHAE (5,869,027) (2,072,527) 17,941,554 — — 10,000,000
At 31 December 2011 R2011512831H 380,000 — 17,941,554 172,662 24,816,824 43,311,040

Note: MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited (“MiniLogic HK”) was
incorporated with an authorized share capital of HK$10,000,000 of
10,000,000 shares HK$1.0 each and 6,249,027 shares of HK$1.0
each were issued prior to 1 January 2010. On 28 February 2011,
1,402,173 shares of HK$1.0 each were issued at an aggregate
subscription price of HK$10,000,000. According to the share swap
agreement between the Company, Minilogic Investment Limited
(“Minilogic BVI”) and the then equity holders of MiniLogic HK on 20
December 2011, the total share capital of 7,651,200 shares and the
entire share premium balance of MiniLogic HK was reallocated to
merger reserve for the group reorganization.

fat: WAl ER QR (HE®R D K &

A 37 B /9 5% T8 % AN 4 10,000,00078 7T *
710,000,000 F AR EE 1.0 7T K AR 15 -
H #6,249,027 % &= % ® E1.0% T &9 X
5 B 7201041 A1 8 B 317 - 120114
2 A 281 @ %42 R 8 € 10,000,000 7% T
171,402,173 TR EE 1.0 TR D °
& — 15 AN 2 &~ Minilogic Investment
Limited ([Minilogic BVI]) & % &l = & &9 &
BriEREA AR2011E128208 5T 2 &)
B e Al s B2 8% 487,651,200
BEROREBROEELEHRETOIER
SEBHANEGHERS -

41
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meERERE
For the year ended 31 December 2011

B E2011F12H31HIFFE
2010
20104
HK$
T
Operating activities RESEE
Profit before tax IRl 12,998,725 19,093,166
Adjustment for: EA T 2
— Finance costs — @& Rk AN 8,640 65,412
— Interest income — F B YA (3,386) (312)
— Deprecation of property, plant and equipment —¥1% - E R R #EHTE 1,254,778 1,105,912
— Reversal of allowance for impairment — R E SRR E R E D
on trade receivables (17,132) (19,198)
— Impairment loss on property, plant — - BEMREREEIRE
and equipment — 383,025
— Provision for slow-moving and —FHEEBRTEEE
obsolete inventories 136,459 —
Operating cash flows before working A EEESEBHALE
capital changes HERE 14,378,084 20,628,005
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERD,(Em) 5,462,621 (6,028,371)
Increase in trade receivables JFE UL 5 AR FR3E N (7,851,081) (8,385,803)
Increase in deposits and prepayments R4 R IE A RIELE N (7,354,727) (2,408,343)
Increase in trade and other payables BRE=E285 KHEER
to third parties BR SR3E N 562,261 696,803
Decrease in trade payable to a fellow BN—HRRMNBERAGZ2ES
subsidiary R 5RO (1,389,863) (1,270,099)
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to A —RFEIZER AR 2B
an intermediate holding company CrL2>), /1% 40 (134,000) 46,000
Cash generated from operations EXfREECR® 3,673,295 3,278,192
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ERNEBNEH (5,491,932) —

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities (AR),/RELEFFH 2
BEE (1,818,637) 3,278,192




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

el RERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
B E2011F12H31 A 1L F/E

Investing activities

Payments purchase of property, plant
and equipment

Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

(Repayment)/proceeds of bank advances
under discounted bills

Repayment of obligation under
finance lease

(Decrease) in advance from Innovation
and Technology Fund

Proceeds from issue of shares by a subsidiary

Interests on bank borrowings paid
Finance lease interest paid

Net cash from financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances and cash

Bank overdraft

REED

BEWE BERRBZHR

B KA B
RARREEFHZFRE

BMEEH

MARBZRITBRZ
(B Fri5 A

EEREHESE

REAFRRES 2
£ 3 O )
—RIH B A T B TR 2

78 Eh 7]

FT 15 A
EATIRITE KA E
ENEERERE

REMEZH 2 FRS

Re MRS FEYFEMN
FNRELREEEY

FRAGRASFEY

RERBSEEYZIM
RITHEBRLRS

RITEX

Annual Report 2011 &

2010
20104F

HK$

o
(2,147,281) (2,116,663)
3,386 312
(2,143,895) (2,116,351)
(3,893,760) 3,893,760
— (10,817)
(398,480) (90,391)
10,000,000 —
(8,640) (62,636)
— (2,776)
5,699,120 3,727,140
1,736,588 4,888,981
5,897,957 1,008,976
7,634,545 5,897,957
7,634,545 5,995,208
— (97,251)
7,634,545 5,897,957
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Notes to the Financial Statements
R e ke

For the year ended 31 December 2011
B 22011 F12A31HIEFE

1. General Information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 31
March 2011, as an exempted company with limited liability.
The address of its registered office was situated at Landmark
Square, 3rd Floor, 64 Earth Close, P.O. Box 30592, Grand
Cayman KY1-1203, Cayman Islands and is changed to
Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350 Grand Cayman
KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands from 31 January 2012. The
address of its principal place of business is remained at Unit
508-509, 5th Floor, IC Development Centre, No.6 Science
Park West Avenue, Hong Kong Science Park, Pak Shek Kok,
Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 19 January 2012 (“the Listing Date”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activity of its subsidiaries is the provision of
integrated circuit (“IC”) solutions and is engaged in design,
development and sales of ICs.

As at 31 December 2011, the parent company of the
Company is Kith Technologies Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, which held 52.01%
of the issued share capital of the Company. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, as at 31 December 2011,
Accufit Investments Inc., a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, is the ultimate parent and ultimate
controlling party of the Company. Subsequent to the listing of
the Company’s shares on 19 January 2012, the Company
becomes an associate of Kith Technologies Limited.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 36 to 104
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
The consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

—RER

RNQ A R201MEIAB EH & B
SadftkLs —HERRERE
FRAAR - ARAlZMPEERRM
B Landmark Square * 3rd Floor * 64
Earth Close * P.O. Box 30592 * Grand
Cayman KY1-1203 - Cayman Islands -
I f 20124 1 A 31 H ¥ 24 A& Clifton House
75 Fort Street * P.O. Box 1350 Grand
Cayman KY1-1108 + Cayman Islands -
MEETELEMIDAEBTBHNALH
HAEAGERNSZENERNERACKS
(3% B B R 0512 508-509 F o

RA TR NR2012FE1 8198 ([ £
BHDEEBEBHARXZIHARAD A
([B 2 AT ]) BI MR £ o

ARmy—EEREZERRTA - HKHE
RAMEEEBREREXNER(E
REBDNBARTR YREEKRE
R R FABEREE -

R2011F12A8318 KRR AW FQ
7] AKith Technologies Limited © — &
REBREZHSHEMA LN RR @
BEARRNAEB201%E BEITRA AR
AIEEZR A R20115F12H31H -
R E B E B S & A 32 # Accufit
Investments Inc. J5 AN A & ) 5% 4% & A
AREEERG  ERXRAIRKRMORN
2012F1 198 L& XA RK A
Kith Technologies Limited 2 B 4 A &] °

FIEFI0M4B 2R EMBRETIIE
BEREASHMAS(BBZHMA
gEMNEBHBRELEN(ES
FHmEER ) (EAEMEERBZ
BRI EETEREER  HEGE
Al (&8 gtEa ) EREB(RE)D
2HBRE - REVIERRITEBES
BRREN KB RETAIERB S EH
BAITAER EMBN DO EAFE
BEMBE
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B TS Sk Y 5T ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011
B E20114F 12831 A IF F /&

General Information (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.

Reorganization and Basis of Preparation

MiniLogic Device Corporation Limited (“MiniLogic HK”) was
founded in 2000 by Mr. Li Kwei Chung, an executive Director,
Ms. Tong Suk Fun, Sabrina, a member of the senior
management, and Mr. Tsang John Sing Choi, an independent
third party. The companies now comprising the Group were
under the common control of Kith Technologies Limited and
its beneficial owners (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) as defined in the GEM Listing Rules. Pursuant
to the group reorganization (the “Reorganization”) as
described below, the Company has since 20 December 2011
become the holding company of its subsidiaries now
comprising the Group. Details of the Reorganization are
summarized below:

(1)  On 31 March 2011, the Company was incorporated in
the Cayman lIslands under the Companies Law as an
exempted company with limited liability with an
authorized share capital of HK$380,000 divided into
3,800,000 shares of HK$0.10 each (the “Share”).

(2) On 31 March 2011, one Share was allotted and issued
as nil paid share to Company Secretaries Limited. The
said one nil paid Share held by Company Secretaries
Limited was then transferred to Kith Technologies
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Kith Holdings
Limited on 31 March 2011.

(3) On 27 May 2011, Minilogic Investment Limited (“Minilogic
BVI”) was incorporated under the laws of British Virgin
Islands as the intermediate holding company of the
Group. Upon its incorporation, Minilogic BVI was
authorized to issue up to a maximum of 50,000 ordinary
shares of a single class with par value of US$1.00 each
(“Minilogic BVI Share”). On 27 May 2011, one Minilogic
BVI Share was allotted and issued to the Company, nil
paid.

—RE® @)
meaBmRABT(EIT) 25
MBTMBARAHNEEE

BEARGREE
HITEETHBRELE SHREEAS
GRAERERBLIE=Z WM EE
20004 &l i Al = BB R A A (R
BlEE]) - BEAKRAEENS QA
% % Kith Technologies Limited & & &
mEBANGBAMERER] X5
BIZER EWARA) A HRIZER - BIET
N EREHATEA] A2 F
B 20114 12 B 20 B #8 A% 4 I8 IF 48 A AR
SESHBARMNERAR - E4AF
BB T -

(1) MR20114E3A318 ' AR AlEH
EHERERAZEMKT A
ERRBREMLRAA @ EERAR
#$380,000/% JT * 9 /43,800,000
&R EEC10/8 T 2 i ([B
%)) e

(2) MR2011E3HA3B: EH — K
RBBRFBRNDERE RETT
Company Secretaries Limited °
Ptz —BRARBRKREK G B
Company Secretaries Limited ¥
5 KRR A2011F3A31AE &
ETRREBERARZEZENW
J& /A FKith Technologies Limited °

(8) M 201145 A 27 B ' Minilogic
Investment Limited ([ Minilogic
BVIDIREBERBRELHES A2 T
MRLAAREEB ZHRHEZERA
A) o A H 7 fift A 32 & © Minilogic
BVIZE /& A & IRk B (E1.00% T
%t 1T £ % 50,000 % B — 8 Bl &
i B% ([Minilogic BVIBX {3 1) o 7
2011FE5H27H  —BRABBRK
Minilogic BVI % 17 2 At 2% & 317
TARRA -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 75 R 3} BT 7 (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2011

B Z20114F12H31 H1FF/E
2. BReorganization and Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(4)

(5)

On 20 December 2011, pursuant to a share swap
agreement, Minilogic BVI acquired the entire issued
share capital from the original shareholders of
MiniLogic HK, in consideration of (i) Minilogic BVI
crediting as paid up the initial one nil paid share of
Minilogic BVI held by the Company; (ii) the Company
crediting as fully paid at par the initial one nil paid
Share held by Kith Technologies Limited and (iii) the
Company allotting and issuing 1,976,476 Shares to Kith
Technologies Limited, 696,395 Shares to Richly Global
Investments Limited, 297,992 Shares to Ms. Tong Suk
Fun Sabrina, 297,992 Shares to Mr. Li Kwei Chung,
220,735 Shares to Mr. Shen Wu Cheng, 217,286 Shares
to Silver Great Limited and 93,123 Shares to Ms. Hsieh
Kung Ying Irene, all credited as fully paid.

On 23 December 2011, the authorized share capital of
the Company was increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$1,000,000,000 by the creation of 9,996,200,000
Shares of HK$ 0.10 each.

Conditional on the share premium account of the
Company being credited as a result of the Placing
scheduled to be taken place subsequent to the year
end date, the Directors were authorized to allot and
issue a total of 146,200,000 Shares, by way of
capitalization of the sum of HK$14,620,000 standing to
the credit of the share premium account of the
Company, crediting as fully paid at par to the
Shareholders as appearing on the register of members
of the Company on pro-rata basis, as of 23 December
2011. The Placing and allotment was completed on 19
January 2012.

Immediately after the Reorganization, the Company has
become the holding company of its subsidiaries now
comprising the Group.

2.

EAREREEE)

(4)

R2011E12 5208 @ REBE—H#%
B% 1% = - Minilogic BVI[A % &l =
MRERFKEZDBEEITHR
A KRB & (i)Minilogic BVI# & 2
&) Ff # Minilogic BVI# 18 — A% K
PR ARY AR (i)A
A 7] #Kith Technologies Limited
BT+ #1168 — BR R AR 3R IR 0 12 @
BEARYRBHR : Ki) AR 7 M
Kith Technologies Limited i¢. 2%
%% 171,976,476 % % 10 + M Richly
Global Investments Limited E¢ 2 &
% 17696,395 K X 10 ~ M5 S

=+ B B K 3£ 17297,992% AX 17 ~ [A)
2 fE R 5E A D B K E 17297,992
B AR 15« 1AL 1R 42 2t A A B R B
17220,7350 % 5 ~ MR T B R A
7] B 2% K 3% 17217,286 1% A% 0 &
I B B B 2 4 Bg 3% I ¥1793,123
R 2HHARINEBHRE -

R2011 512 H23H @ % @& 8 &
9,996,200,000 % & % M 1E0.10/5
TLR R 1D AN B A A TE % AN |
380,000/ 7T #& Z 1,000,000,000
YT ©

BFARABRHO ERARES
GIRFELHEH 2&#ETT) ME
ERE EFEREBEEABAA
7] f&% 17 & (B BR # BR %8 14,620,000
BB ERNN R - R BlA
R20115E12 8238 £ 5 K R 7
&% 3 % fift /9 B% 3R 3% T (B BE 2 & 3
174 $£ 146,200,000 8% A BR 71| A& %4
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
B TS Sk Y 5T ()

For the year ended 31 December 2011
B E20114F 12831 A IF F /&

Reorganisation and Basis of Preparation (Continued) 2. EARGREEE)

As the companies now comprising the Group were controlled FR P 42 A% IS BR A 2B 4B A 1& 2 I 3R B 4R
by the Controlling Shareholders before and after the MAEBHNE AR WEAEASTH
Reorganization, the Reorganization was accounted for as a AEHNEENXESHAR K5
business combination of entities under common control. The BiEmRINIRBRESSAMAE L
consolidated financial statements has been prepared based V218 5| Fo5R [ LR EFIE B E
on the principles and procedures of merger accounting in etk E’]/—\ﬁ# = 5t R A &2 7 ﬁ’ﬁ
accordance with Accounting Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting R - A S5 &2MH Llﬁz wrR 86
for Common Control Combinations” issued by HKICPA. ﬁﬁﬁkﬂk R i* EREREHRNESE
Accordingly, the consolidated statements of comprehensive RenERRBOVBAEEERERE *5‘
income, consolidated statements of financial position, BEHREHECTFEFE M TAR2E N
consolidated statements of changes in equity and UNGIEES i gn aval=1 15

consolidated statements of cash flows are prepared as if the

current group structure had been in existence throughout the

reporting periods rather than from the date of incorporation

of the Company.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 3. WMAIRKRBIEBUBHREER

Financial Reporting Standards

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and revised
HKFRSs, which are generally effective for accounting year
beginning on or after 1 January 2011. For the purpose of
preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Group
has adopted all these new and revised HKFRSs to the extent
that they are applicable to the Group consistently throughout
the reporting year.

The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs had no
material impact on the results and financial position for the
current and prior years have been prepared and presented.

#Y FE A
FEEQMASCHEEZEM LK
BT BRBMBREER  WR20114
TATR ARG Z Gt FEER -
ARGV RE  AEEERM®Y
REEREFEERERRAEEN
EFHILRETREMBREE
Al -

RN ZEF T RGBT EBMERE
EAHAEERBEFERER LS

MEEMTBERALTEBRKERNY
@,
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

A IS R MY 5k (4B)
For the year ended 31 December 2011
B E20114F 12831 A IF F /&

3. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
HKICPA has issued the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the accounting year beginning on 1 January 2011. The
Group has not early applied these new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations in the
consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
(Amendments) Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters'

HKFRS 7 Transfer of Financial Assets'
(Amendments)

HKFRS 7 Offsetting Financial Assets and
(Amendments) Financial Liabilities*

HKFRS 7 Mandatory Effective Date of HKFRS 9
(Amendments) and Transition Disclosures®

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements*

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements*

HKFRS 12 Disclosures of Interests in Other

Entities*

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement*

HKAS 1 Presentation of ltems of
(Amendments) Other Comprehensive Income?®

HKAS 12 Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
(Amendments) Assets?

HKAS 19 Employee Benefits*
(Revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 Separate Financial Statements*
(Revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
(Revised in 2011) Ventures*

HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
(Amendments) Financial Liabilities®

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Stripping Costs in Production Phase
of a Surface Mine*
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
B E20114F 12831 A IF F /&

3. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 3. HAIRKEITEBMBEREEL

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued) E’J@Fﬁ (%)

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011 RO FE7R1B R ERRABENFEE
HA R A 3

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012 2 R2012F1A1ARERFABNEE
HA R A AR

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012 3 R2012F7A1HEZRRABENFE
HA R AR 3K

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 & R2013FE1A1HSEERABNFEE
HE AN

°  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 3 R2014F1 1A RERFABNEE
HA R A AR

© Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015 6 R2015F1A1HKERRABENFE
HA R AR 3K

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) require an entity to disclose both BEAVBWMELENETR(EFTR) K

quantitative and qualitative information for the derecognition EAEBEE % B AR IEFER W £

of financial assets where the entity has a continuing MEE BERARKRIBRZEER

involvement in the derecognized assets. BEEEREHEER-

FEEVBHREEMNE7TR(EFTA) R

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) issue new disclosure requirements

in relation to the offsetting models of financial assets and
financial liabilities. The amendments also improve the
transparency in the reporting of how companies mitigate
credit risk, including disclosure of related collateral pledged
or received.

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (as issued in November
2009) establishes new principles for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” (as revised in November 2010) adds
requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.
The main changes to the requirements of HKAS 39 are
summarized below:

— Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement” are subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
B E20114F 12831 A IF F /&

3. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 3.

Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

— In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated as
at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless
the presentation of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39,
the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as at fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in HKAS 39 on
hedge accounting, derecognition and impairment of financial
assets continues to apply.

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” builds on
existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the
determining factor in whether an entity should be included
within the consolidated financial statements of the parent
company. HKFRS 10 provides additional guidance to assist
in the determination of control where this is difficult to assess.

HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” provides for a more realistic
reflection of joint arrangements by focusing on the rights and
obligations of the arrangement, rather than its legal form (as
is currently the case). HKFRS 11 addresses inconsistencies
in the reporting of joint arrangements by requiring a single
method to account for interests in jointly controlled entities.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKFRS 12 “Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities” is a new
and comprehensive standard on disclosure requirements for
all forms of interests in other entities, including joint
arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and
other off balance sheet vehicles.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27 and
HKAS 28 as a result of the issuances of HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11 and HKFRS 12.

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” improves consistency
and reduces complexity by providing, for the first time, a
precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair
value measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across HKFRSs. The requirements do not extend the use of
fair value accounting, but provide guidance on how it should
be applied where its use is already required or permitted by
other standards within HKFRSs.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income” require companies preparing
financial statements in accordance with HKFRSs to group
together items within other comprehensive income (OCI) that
may be reclassified to the profit or loss section of the income
statement. The amendments also reaffirm existing
requirements that items in OCI and profit or loss should be
presented as either a single statement or two consecutive
statements.
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Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)

HKAS 12 (Amendments) “Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Asset” clarify the determination of deferred tax for
investment property measured at fair value. The amendments
introduce a rebuttable presumption that deferred tax on
investment property measured at fair value should be
determined on the basis that its carrying amount will be
recovered through sale. Furthermore, the amendments
incorporate the requirement previously in HK(SIC)-Int 21
Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable
Assets that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets,
measured using the revaluation model in HKAS 16, should
always be measured on a sale basis.

HKAS 19 (Revised in 2011) “Employee Benefits” includes a
number of amendments that range from fundamental
changes to simple clarifications and re-wording. The revised
standard introduces significant changes in the accounting for
defined benefit pension plans including removing the choice
to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and losses. Other
changes include modifications to the timing of recognition for
termination benefits, the classification of short-term employee
benefits and disclosures of defined benefit plans.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations will have no material impact on the results and
financial position of the Group.
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRS which collective term
includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, the HKAS and
Interpretations issued by the HKICPA. The consolidated
financial statements also include the applicable disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the GEM Listing Rules.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for property,
plant and equipment which is measured at revalued
amounts. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the periods presented unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the management to exercise their
judgments in the process of applying the accounting policies.
Although these estimates are based on management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results
ultimately may differ from those estimates. The areas
involving critical judgments and areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to these financial statements
are disclosed in note 5 to the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these financial statements are set out below.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statement of the Company and entities (including
special purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the effective
date of acquisition to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

B Z20114F12H31 H1FF/E
4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income,
expenses and unrealized gains on transactions
between Group entities are eliminated on consolidation.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, unless the investment is classified
as held for sale or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost or fair value at the date of revaluation, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Revaluations
are performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carrying amounts do not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the end
of the reporting year.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognized in profit or loss during the financial year in
which they are incurred.

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011

B E20114F12A31 HILFE
4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4. EBEREFTHEE)
(b) Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (b) ME BMERRZEE)
Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of an EEfEEEENEMEMGILE
asset is recognised in other comprehensive income, REMEEKZFER - IR
and accumulated under the heading of asset EEEEMFHEET  EWEE

revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses
a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase
is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously expensed. A decrease in the net carrying
amount arising on revaluation of an asset is recognised
in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance,
if any, held in the asset revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent

RELF-HEEZAERDR
NERNEHBER - D HE
ZATE 3 - RIGZIE N AdE s
KR AREMGHEENBEREF
BEL WEBBIAERZEE
Zﬁﬁi%*ﬁ%ﬁé@é%i%%ﬁﬁm
MR (INA) - AEBm RN
quéBAﬁE‘}Z#EJE%EW
HEER NEESRREEARE

sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the attributable SHEEAEKEEBRARE R
revaluation surplus remaining in the asset revaluation Al e

reserve is transferred directly to retained profits.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is Mz BERZENITERRZE I
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost or £ E (G 5t A 52 B HR A A 8 H A AR
revalued amounts over their estimated useful lives on a NEMESEMNLE RIRE REG

straight line basis. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose during the reporting period are as follows:

4 o 3R o A 3 Ut B T A
EBFEMT -

Computer 30% £ 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20% REREE 20%
Instruments 20% ITE 20%
Office equipment 30% N 30%
Motor vehicle 30% RE 30%
Leasehold improvement Over the lease term HEMEEE REEHR
Useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and A E AR EEZRSHREER
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting e MFEE(ER)  EAEE

period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset is the difference between the

BHrYERBAEZHEBEA
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ME - BERRERERLER
FEHAREEERAREETS
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RIFERZEEMELENKZEHL
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net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the SFHREAREEC ER  UREE
relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss in the WIFERNHERBRER AR
period in which the asset is derecognised. B e



56 Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZRIG&MNEEER QA
T ———==—

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 75 R 3} BT 7 (A8
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B E20116F12A31HILFE
4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4. EBEREFTHEE)
(c) Revenue recognition (c) W=E®ER
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the Wik Wk ER 2 REBZAF
consideration received or receivable and represents Bt HERELEREBKBERESP
amounts receivable for goods sold or services provided LEEYSHRERERKER 2
in the normal course of business, net of returns and % %R i"i&ﬁ?ﬂ o & AR ﬂ
discounts. Revenue is recognised when it is probable mRAERANEERRE KRS
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and Al AR SR T 2 - BN A] FERR UK
when the revenue can be measured reliably. o
Revenue from sales of goods is recognized on the REHEEMH KR = EEB #E
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which MERMNEREZR(BEAE
generally coincides with the time when goods are MNERMEREERTER
delivered and the title has passed to the customers. fr) + BD AT SRR A o
Revenue from the provision of IC Packaging service is REREREFBHRE 2 BmZR
recognized in the period the relevant service is REAER RS 2 BRI FER ©
provided.
Revenue from fixed-price contracts for the provision of KB He e 48 T &K E B RS
application specific integrated circuit service (“ASIC (TASICHR 1) B E TE B 18 & 4V &Y
Service”) is recognized under the percentage of Wi RER A D LR - T5
completion method, which is based on the services RIEEBEENEEZZAE IEERMH
performed to date as a percentage of the total services B AR 7% 1k 18 T 12 At 80 2 2B AR 75 Y
to be performed under the relevant contract. 7L HERR
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a KE 2 FEENFERARIE R
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding MEELKZZE/MAREELRS IIE
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the HRAEBRANE(AEZemEE
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash WTEER B A AR o & E (A H
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset BRIBCR MR EZEERT S
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition. R FEREEANE)GE o
(d) Taxation (d) ®i=E

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because it excludes items of income and expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years, and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting year.
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B E2011F12H31HIFFE
4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4. EBEREFTHEE)
(d) Taxation (Continued) (d BHHEE)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting year and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the year in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised. The
measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
the reporting year, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4. EBEREFTHEE)

(d) Taxation (Continued) (d) BEE)
Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss, except EERERBPER  EEH
when it relates to items that are recognized in other EA A H th 2 U8 25 P Bk BB P
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which =P ERNIEE A AR - £
case, the deferred tax is also recognized in other EIERT  EEFHIBEIND B R E
comprehensive income or directly in equity 2 E RPN EERNEE TR
respectively. 2 .

(e) Lease (e) HE
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the B HE WIS BT A R B KER
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and 1 B\ B B2 2] 2R 88 i T oA A A B
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are HERERREMEE - TA A
classified as operating leases. MmEE S EAKEHEE -
Assets held under finance leases are initially LImEHEERENEE  HRAE
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair values at ERBEFENAFTE  iHAEER
the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present F EEEBEELINRBREY
value of the minimum lease payments. The THAGAEBNEE - HEHE
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the AR EE S TR GRS SRR
consolidated statement of financial position as a P AR ERESTE-
finance lease obligation.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance HENKERMEKAEEER
costs and reduction of the lease obligation so as to FERI2EDE  FEERNGT
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining EHRFEEEDNE - & KA
balance of the liability. Finance costs are recognized RIEZRANERR BRIEEAEE
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly EHAEREEAR TEEBR
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are T BERANZBAEE/MNER
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s policy on KAKEE RN (R TN &5t
borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below). %) e
Operating lease payments are recognised as an KERENTNBEAEERMN
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the ERZEERRIHL - tERSEIET
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an A ETE R B A K FE IR A &
incentive to enter into an operating lease are REEHRNESEZERAES
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a X R e
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(f) Inventories f FE

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, calculated on the first-in, first-out
basis, comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Tr & % A A B2 ] 8 3R )R B /0 R
FH AR © O ASE A ST & A
B BREMERBRARSES
S BUEL IR B b 3 BRI B A A
RoAEBFEREAERKBE
BREEMNGBAEE  REFL
HEMOBTEOM[ETKA -
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B E2011F12H31 A I F/E

4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4. EREFEHESE)

(f) Inventories (Continued) f HEHE
When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those EEELHER FEMSERERER
inventories is recognized as an expense in the year in HEAWSERNFERER S
which the related revenue is recognized. The amount of HeBFEEMBREREHEENR
any write-down of inventories to net realizable value FEFEERES BN MUK EE
and all losses of inventories are recognized as an EEMHRER AL - #UR T
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. B £ fa] 8 0] 5 5E 70 B A B Bl Y
The amount of any reversal of any write-down of FERABABEEN AT L MR
inventories is recognized as a reduction in the amount Ao
of inventories recognized as an expense in the year in
which the reversal occurs.

(9) Financial instruments (99 €@I A

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets
All the Group’s financial assets are classified as loans

EEEERRARTANGHOGR
— - cREERERAEEBR
HAEMBAAKRER SRHEE
keBABENIEATFENE-
HWBRETEREERERA
BEEAEENRXFIUARQF
ERBSARNEREERER
BERIN RO TEIAFINAR
REEXTBABENAFESIRK
R (ER) - BRER A
BERESARNEREENT R
BEERAENRIRANER
BRER-

ETHEE
$Elmﬁﬁﬁ$%ﬂi§§"iﬁﬁ“

and receivables. The accounting policies adopted for AEEWRRE - REERES
the Group’s financial assets are set out below. ﬁ%ﬁﬁ AN G 5T B EE%M’:\T
\X o
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4. BEREFEHESE)
(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (9) =®WIA#E)
Financial assets (Continued) TEEE (&)
Effective interest method BT %

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant year. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. At the end of each reporting
year subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy in respect of
impairment on financial assets below), unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost less any identified impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting year. Financial
assets are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been impacted.

ERME LR ECREERH
B R A R B YA D BE R B B F
EW—RBH L BERNXZERES
MEERMEB FEREDE
B EREHE)  BFEhE
FRAESUS(BRERERT
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4., BEREFTHEEE)
(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (99 €@ IA#E)
Financial assets (Continued) TEEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) & f & E R E ()

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of
impairment could include: (i) significant financial
difficulty of the issuer or the counterparty; (ii) default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments; (iii) it
becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organization; or (iv) the
disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Financial assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually, such as trade receivables, are
subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired,
and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not be reversed in the
subsequent year.

ER K EWHIET S - HRRE
BENEBTR AARE: ()BT
AFEF A ERNY B (i)
BRIBPTENB A
B (i) 8 RS AT BE AR S 1T
IS EHE (v AR IR 2T
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JE {8 5l 1t 5F 5 5 3 R (E B £ Bl
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4., EBEREFTHEE)
(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (99 €@MIA#E)
Financial assets (Continued) TEEE (&)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) & & E A ()

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognized in profit or loss.
When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent year, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognized.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4., EBEREFTHEE)
(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (9) =®RIA#E)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued) TEEBERKRAE(E)
Financial liabilities THEE
Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables CRBEBREENE=28
to third parties, trade payable to a fellow subsidiary, S R HEAMERNERR - B —EE

amount due to an intermediate holding company,
advance from Innovation and Technology Fund and
bank borrowings) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the relevant group entities are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

AMBRARNE SRR BN —
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Financial liabilities are derecognised when the EHEBA YA E TRER - B
obligation specified in the relevant contract is B B ema G KIE
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference R WRIEEANETHBERE
between the carrying amount of the financial liability HeHHEPNAENREZZEZRE
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable RIB=PER

is recognised in profit or loss.



64 Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZRI&RNEEER QA
T ———==—

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B 755 R 3} BT 7 (A8

For the year ended 31 December 2011

B E20116F12A31HILFE
4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4., EBEREFTHEE)
(h) Cash and cash equivalents (hy BekELEEY
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash REEEE2RERMs BHak
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in REZEMBREFHEBES - B/1T
hand, deposits held at call with banks and short-term EHAFE AR =M H 34 T 2
bank deposits with an original maturity period of three B R BIR 1T 17 3k o M E kKK 1(E
months or less. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on ERERAEETT DI S
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash EEIHMD BTEININ AR
management are also included as a component of cash FIREEEMNKG -
and cash equivalents.
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets () FELREERE

At the end of each reporting year, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment of financial
assets above) to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense in profit
or loss immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that standard.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4., EBEREFTHEE)
(i) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued) (i) FLMEERMEGE)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the R EBEBERZED  BIEERN
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised FESEEEHE RGN YK
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the B&% EEEZMMERMSET
increased carrying amount does not exceed the Al B AR FE W E E &R
carrying amount that would have been determined had RBEEEMEECNERmMSE -
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in BEBENREEREBEZTRERS
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is WA BRIEEEEERES —
recognised as income in profit or loss, unless the EBIAEHEEAR  £EEB R
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under T+ R (B B 18 B B 55 4R 15 5% ZE Al
another standard, in which case the reversal of the RIEBMIGEEZRE -
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase
under that standard.
(j) Foreign currencies () %

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting year, monetary items denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting year,
and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

()

U}

(m)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial year of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the year in which they are incurred. During the
reporting year, all borrowing costs have been
expensed.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
which is a defined contribution scheme, are charged as
an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

— the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use

or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

— the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

— the availability of adequate technical, financial
and other resources to complete the development
and to use or sell the intangible asset; and

4. EXRERBE®E)
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4., BEREFTHEEE)

(m) Research and development expenditure (Continued)

(n)

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in
the year in which it is incurred.

During the reporting year, all research and development
expenditure has been expensed.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4., BEREFTHEEE)
(0) Related parties (o) BBEAZL
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the BEATTIERERRYBEHRE 2
entity that is preparing its financial statements (“reporting ER((MEEBDBEBE AT
entity”). =i

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s ZHaANTEFE TN ES
family is related to a reporting entity if that person: B aZ2 AT ERKk i
HEREERTAEBE:

,\
e

(i) has control or joint control over the reporting () HHREERBHEEES
entity; 1 o Bk 5 18 ol R

(i) has significant influence over the reporting (i) HHEEBHEAEAXN
entity; or 2 1)

(i) is a member of the key management (iy RBEERBARBRESE
personnel of the reporting entity or of a B ARZETEERE
parent of the reporting entity. Bk 8 o

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of (o) EBBXNEANUTEMAIEG
the following conditions applies: B R EETRHEHAE:

(i) the entity and the reporting entity are () ERHAFEEBARMA
members of the same group (which means —SBR AKE A
that each parent subsidiary and fellow ZNIC] IS == R/N=TI NS
subsidiary is related to the others); BENBARSEM

It 48 B 8 &

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of iy X—EBARES—HT®
the other entity (or an associate or joint ZHERA XA ER
venture of member of a group of which the Al RS —EBM
other entity is a member); BEERARKE 2B

ERARNAEEQNA

(i) both entities are joint ventures of the same (i) EBHER—F=H
third party. ZEERNT

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity vy ERBAE=-ERZA
and the other entity is an associate of the /NS R T Rl -
third entity; REZEBBZBERD

Gl
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4. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 4. BEREFEHESE)
(o) Related parties (Continued) (o) BAEAL(E)
(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of (o) EBXEBNUTEAIEHG
the following conditions applies: (Continued) W EmEERSTBRE:
(%)
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan v) EBRBAREERENHE
for the benefit of employees of either the WEERBEH o EE
reporting entity or an entity related to the Z B B 18 F &% 37 B 5%
reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself B e R e El o fWRhEs
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are EBBHR Al
also related to the reporting entity: Bl EB) 2 EE TN
Bl S B A B
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by i) BERBX@FFATEAL
a person identified in (a); or P2 i S B A FE I Bk
(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (i) @OFTREALTHE
influence over the entity or is a member of BBEEEATESE
the key management personnel of the entity (or ERIAZBEBEBIA
of a parent of the entity). RAIZEEEEREKE -
5. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty 5. i THBEENETERR
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which R RE A A S B A2 et B (3R W
are described in note 4, management is required to make N EEEARREMRETSSZE
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying M EEREERAAEELHY &
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent S RBREREit A EEREKRSERSA
from other sources. The estimates and underlying AR HAKRNFBHLRAEBBED
assumptions are based on past experience, expectations of Hih B R o B4 R Al fE M 55 Lk (i 51
the future and other information that are considered to be A e
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on HEst hEEREZS TEELE B -
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are HEAHANBE NBEERFEZ
recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the FEHRGABEENEERR =X
revision affects only that year or in the year of the revision MEEXERTEERBEFEE - H
and future year if the revision affects both current and future REEFERBEFEER -
periods.
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, LTREAIBENEZTERE - UK
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of RMEFRE T —ETBRFENEE
the reporting year that have a significant risk of causing a HEEREOEESIRNERAZERERD
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and HEMfEEr NAMEEREEZERIR -

liabilities within the next financial year.
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5. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued) 5. At THABEENETERRE)
Impairment of trade receivables EWE SRR E
The Group makes impairment of trade receivables based on AEBERBHEWE S EXNATK
assessments of the recoverability of the trade receivables, CEENTFHEHEKRE ZERZED
including the aging analysis of the trade debts, the current WRE BREESEEMNEREST - &
creditworthiness and/or the past collection history of each REFOBITEER/ BT RERE
debtor. Impairment arises where events or changes in P o fWBEAEEHRRER  EIFRE
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be TNEEBT e EEWE - BRI E -
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debt BARBERAERAGMMGES - HE
requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where the actual PRARERRGEETAE =R
result is different from the original estimate, such difference SHEFTRENREFENREKE S
will have impact on the carrying value of the trade EAREREYLRESEAEZE -

receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the reporting year
in which such estimate has been changed.

Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories HEERBRETESNRE

Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete inventories is made HEHENBRFENRBREIREFE
based on the ageing and estimated net realizable value of RRRE R ETER FEMMED - 5
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount BEBELRAGMGHET - MBENE
involves judgment and estimates. Where the actual outcome BAERERRKGETAR L =2
in future is different from the original estimate, such EH ENGBAEREFENTERR
difference will impact the carrying value of inventories and BN BEEEETE -

the allowance charge/write-back in the year in which such
estimate has been changed.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment M BERRENT HH

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and EHYE BERIXENTEERAS
equipment with respect to depreciation, management SARRR OEEEBRBHEUEE R
estimates the useful lives of various categories of property, EMEEERA A BB T &R
plant and equipment based on the historical experience of STREWME WEMKER A HE -
the actual useful lives of assets of similar nature and WA BEE Z R R TR AEE =
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation charge B IEITE S H - i 88 SR 7 7 &
where useful lives are different to those previously estimated, DB CEENEENIEFTHEER
or it will write off or write down technically obsolete or non- = o

strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Provisions and contingent liabilities BERIAREE

The Group recognises provision for liabilities of uncertain F=INCS BESHmMER AR
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive HEERT B ApETZEEMR
obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is mEBEHLER =R L - WRE ST 1
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be AT SEfh AT 0 AN B B ak Lk BE
required to settle the obligations and a reliable estimate can FEELHEICEIETHEEEDL B
be made. Where it is not probable that an outflow of HoM P —EZTERLLBENSET
economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be BRG] EMFRE IZRER
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as contingent ERERERE B 75 3R = B 5E b 3 5 1Bk

liability in a note to the consolidated financial statements. REBE-
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Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximizing the return to shareholders through the
optimization of the debt and equity balances.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
includes the amount due to an intermediate holding
company, advance from Innovation and Technology Fund
and bank borrowings, as disclosed in notes 24, 25 and 26
respectively, net of bank balances and cash, and equity
attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, reserves and retained profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure
periodically. The Group considers the cost of capital and risk
associated with each class of capital, and will balance its
overall capital structure through payment of dividends,
repayment of amount due to an intermediate holding
company, issuance of new shares as well as the raising of
new debts.

EXREBER
AEBEREESUBRRAEEET
ERERELERB Ma— T mEEE
BB BACE T E AR SRR F
RAE e

AEEBMEARERERS AR
N—HEHEERAFRIE . K8 A
FREESHNERRBITER(D
BT 5E24 « 25 K2 26 FT 1% 55 ) » ol = iR
THEBREES URAARHEE AR
D BEDETRA  FEREFE

B Al o

AEBNEEB TR BELARE -
AEBEBEZRERNFRNENK
AMER YEEBIMNRE  EE
FEf — P BER AR R FROR ~ FIT
MBRANEHBENFEHEREREAR
e
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7. Financial Instruments 7. €@ IA
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €WMIEMNSE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets REBREREFRANEHEE
and liabilities as at the end of each reporting year are HEEREAERT :
as follows:
2010
20104
HK$
B IT
Group RE
Financial assets: TREE:
Loans and receivables: B & R OE
Trade receivables FE U B 5 R K 20,380,653 12,512,440
Bank balances and cash RITEBR AR 7,634,545 5,995,208
28,015,198 18,507,648
Financial liabilities cHAaE
Financial liabilities measured REHENATTENERAE
at amortised cost:
Trade and other payables to ENE=22%5
third parties Ko E A & £ BR 5K 2,353,725 2,101,464
Trade payable to a fellow subsidiary B —RE R R B A A
2B RN — 1,389,863
Amount due to an intermediate FER —REH EER A A
holding company 2 FRIE — 134,000
Advance from Innovation and KERFRIEESZER
Technology Fund — 398,480
Bank borrowings RATIE A — 3,991,011

2,353,725 8,014,818
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7. Financial Instruments (Continued) 7. @I AR
(a) Categories of financial instruments (Continued) a) EMIENDEE)
2010
20104F
HK$
7 TT
Company Vi NN
Financial assets: TREE:
Loans and receivables: B P W RROE
Amount due from a subsidiary & W — fE B B8 A 7 9 SR IE 380,000 =
Bank and cash balances RITRIRBEH 231,567 —
611,547 —
Financial liabilities TRAE
Amount due to an indirectly R — B EEEEN
owned subsidiary BB A 7 9 FRIE 510,000
Other payables E b JE 5 FRE 10,756 —
520,756 —
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MEEBREEEERBE
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial NEEMESEHE L &G R
risks: market risk (including currency risk and interest R mzRR(EEEERR K
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on FERR) EERRETEE
how to mitigate these risks are described below. The B g o 40 {A] R K 25 L 3 B Y B
management manages and monitors these exposures RENTX - BEEEEBERER
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a i L B f DA MR OR I B R B U B
timely and effective manner. B E YT o
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7. Financial Instruments (Continued) 7. @I AR
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIBEMBEEEEREE#E)
(Continued)
(i) Currency risk (i) EBE¥EE

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk

AEBEEESINERE - =

primarily through sales and purchases that are %E #im AR E 58T BE
denominated in a currency other than the BEEBUIIHEEETHE
functional currency of the operations to which MR - HREARHNEE S
they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk BERXTTETDEARE
include United States dollars (“USD”) and (TARED o tboh "EH
Renminbi (“RMB”). In addition, certain bank ZETRITESRIMAZETT

balances of the Group are also denominated in
USD and RMB. The Group currently does not

RARBETE - NEE B Al
ﬂﬁ?ﬁ?ﬁﬁ?l\lﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂﬁ?l\

have a foreign currency hedging policy with B RERSR - A BEE

respect to its foreign exchange exposure. EE.’?%—‘—EM\EJ—L LEES

However, management monitors foreign I & E ¥ & oK S E R
LA

exchange exposures and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at the end of each reporting
year are as follow:

a0 o
ZoN

REBREREF RSN
B ENEBEERER
BEMEKEELDT

2010
20104
HK$
BT
Assets BE
UsD E7T 22,909,579 16,686,475
RMB AR 450,327 263,863
Liabilities ABfE
UsD ETT 1,793,133 7,323,830
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7. Financial Instruments (Continued) 7. &I A#E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIBEMBEEEEREE#E)

(Continued)

(i)  Currency risk (Continued) (i) E¥RmEEE)
Foreign currency sensitivity analysis S B =% 5T
The Group mainly exposes to foreign exchange AEBFEAZETMA
fluctuation of the currencies of USD and RMB R & (BT /s
against the currency of Hong Kong dollar (‘HKD”). EES - EERE ' ARB
The directors consider that the Group’s exposure JCER 3 T 8 - AN & B B A
to USD does not give rise to significant foreign X E T 5| BN R R
currency risk on the ground that HKD is pegged WAREKN - At BEEEE
to USD. Therefore, no sensitivity analysis of USD ETHLERERER 2
against the functional currency of the respective BB ZBURE DT °
group entity is disclosed.
A reasonably possible change of 5% in the /\ E ?f"%( B T 2 fH B BB K
exchange rate between RMB and HKD would BE 1 30 5% G 1B & 8
have no material impact on the Group’s profit or g ;TLK ESERBREFE
loss during the reporting year and there would be Y 5 Al 2k B 18 K E K &
no material impact on the Group’s equity as at the 2. e AERRER
end of each reporting year. The sensitivity EFERZEZBERE AR
analysis includes only outstanding RMB 2 HREDITIABIERE
denominated monetary items and adjusts their BUYNARBEFEZER
translation at the end of respective reporting HH MRASBEZHREHR
period for a 5% change in the currency rate. 5% REHE%EMER ZE X
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign FAE - ERMTEEEAERN
currency risk in respect of RMB internally to key ZESR A AR ZHNEE
management personnel and represents [, B B - 5% /£ BT A AY &R X
management’'s assessment of the reasonably KR IRREEEN G
possible change in the exchange rate of HKD BILABRARE 257
against RMB. R g o

(i) Interest rate risk (i) FIEE
The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate ZIK EEARZEESREF

risk arises primarily from its variable-rate bank
deposits and bank overdrafts. The Group’s
exposure to fair value interest rate risk is
attributable to its fixed-rate bank advances under
discounted bills.

The Group currently does not have any interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management

EREBEBREEAEF
Tﬁﬁf RERITIES o A
FEAZZAFENER
BMAREERBAEZERETZ
BT F RIBITRRK ©

7 55 8] 35 65 #5 4 {F ) ) &
YR o AT EEREE

monitors the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk h gl e | <
on an ongoing basis and will consider hedging CWERF ERE EYH
interest rate risk should the need arise. 7F'J & o
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7. Financial Instruments (Continued) 7. ERIA#E
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) BIBEMBEEEEREE#E)

(Continued)

(ii) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIFEREEE (&)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis Tl K & X & 73T
The sensitivity analysis below has been prepared AT S RRE DT E R &R
based on the exposure to interest rates for the & RN &£ F 2 0] &R =
Group’s variable-rate bank deposits and bank BRITFERERBRITEIMT
overdrafts at the end of each reporting year. The JKE’]ﬂ EERHER NiER
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of PMEBRERSHREFRK
these assets and liabilities outstanding at the end EANZEEERAEGES
of each reporting year were outstanding for the BEREEHEALER - KA
whole period. A 100 basis points increase or FEEEAEB N E &R F
decrease in interest rates is used when reporting = &) b B {5 AR 100 1 £ 25 /Y
interest rate risk internally to key management FEEFAXTHR TREE
personnel and represents management’s BEIGRNEEH 268
assessment of the reasonably possible change in AR E) - REBREFE
interest rates. The analysis has been performed E’\] 5 A 75 BA AR [B] B B 2E 4R
on the same basis throughout the reporting year. 2o
At the end of the reporting year, if interest rates Ef\i&t‘ziifi fi N & @ 2 7]
had been 100 basis points higher/lower in respect SRERTERRRITE
of the Group’s variable rate bank deposits and iZ F & EF P& K 1001E
bank overdrafts, with all other variables held ER(MAEEMAIERE
constant, there would have no significant impact RIFTE) REBRHKE
on the Group’s profit or loss during the reporting FEMREAMEIEERKNE
year and on the Group’s equity as at 31 B %2014 % 2010612 A
December 2011 and 2010. BIBZBATERIEKX

'

(i) Credit risk (i) =E R
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to AEBZEERR ETERE
trade receivables and bank deposits. As at 31 TEREWE FERR MIBIT
December 2011 and 2010, the Group'’s maximum F e M20115F K20104F

exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is the carrying
amounts of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statements of
financial position.

128318 AR S HF X
Hul@ﬂﬁ@cﬁ'ﬁﬂ—r%‘}$¢l
ERYBEIZESREE
2 & A iﬁ/\ﬁﬁn&ﬁﬁt/ﬂ%ﬁﬁ
EIHEBEBEERcREE
ZERME -
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7. Financial Instruments (Continued) 7. &®IE#E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HMEEBREEEERBEEGE)
(Continued)

(iii) Credit risk (Continued) (i) EERB (&)

The Group has a credit policy in place and will
perform credit evaluations on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. The Group
also has an export credit insurance with the Hong
Kong Export Credit Insurance Corporation to
cover risks on non-payment by customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debt regularly to ensure that adequate
allowance for impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
management of the Group considers that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as the
Group’s largest trade debtor accounted for 39%
and 71% of its total trade receivables as at 31
December 2011 and 31 December 2010
respectively. In addition, the Group’s five largest
trade debtors accounted for 86% and 92% of its
total trade receivables as at 31 December 2011
and 2010 respectively.

The credit risk for liquid funds is limited because
such amounts are placed with various banks with
good credit ratings.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables are set out in note 19.

AEBEEENEERR
THRHBERESBEE T
THENEENMARTRPAE
TEERFE - AEE AR
BEEHLOERERRAEE
BEREBINEPR TERK
Z B2 01 BRE

REEREEERR K&
BEMEHNSENESZE
B H) A W & R AR
ATl EzeBELR
5 O Rk (21 /85 18 B 4 BL UL T
FOAREZEEERAN
SEZEERRE XNER
i

M 2011412 A31H & 2010
F12H318 AE B &K
FEUE 5 AR 3 1h B 4 ek
B 5K 239%N71% » W
AEBEERRBSES oIt
N HR20114F 20104 12
A31H - "&EE A KE K
B SRR D Bh E 8 E Ik
E 5 8RN 86% N 92% °

AEBERBESTHEHLZ
FERBRER HAREMRE
EERESHEEFTRR
o 2 IRAT °

BRAKEMREAZREE
B Z R (EE R
E-— P EERBEHNHE
19 @
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7. Financial Instruments (Continued) 7. &®IE#E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MBEBEEBEERBEKE)
(Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (iv) nEBELERE

The Group’s liquidity position is monitored closely
by the management of the Group. In the
management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations
and to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

During the reporting year, the Group financed its
working capital requirements principally by funds
generated from operations, bank borrowings and
advance from Innovation and Technology Fund
which is a form of assistance provided to a
subsidiary of the Group by the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.

The following table details the Group’s contractual
maturities at the end of each reporting year for its
financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up
based on undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes
both interest and principal cash flows.

rEBEZEREREYE
RAKEHEZRBE TN
R-GEEERDESART
o ASBEEERERER
BEATRZRERE R
EZBWKF UREAEEZ
LERERBNEEH R

RBEFE ~AEEXERE
BEEEENES  RITHE
RAEREFREESHER
(AEEFERNRAEER
ZHBRRREMEN —EH
B IREAFELEEN -

TERANAEBERERE
FREMABZAOIB
e TRERBESBER
ZABBBRGRE  WUK
SEEAZNFNRE A B
REERE - RABENE
REENRESRE -
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B E2011F12H31 A I F/E
7. Financial Instruments (Continued) 7. @I AR
(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) HHEEREEEEREEKE)
(Continued)
(iv) Liquidity risk (Continued) (iv) H“EELEREE)
Repayable
on demand Between Total
or within 1 month to undiscounted Carrying
Group AEE one month 1 year cash flows amount
BARERT
R—EAR —BRZE REEH
i —F BeRELE KRELE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT 7T BT T
As at 31 December 2011 R2011512831H
Trade and other payables BRE=AZBH X
to third parties H A FE 7 BR 3K 2,353,725 - 2,353,725 2,353,725
As at 31 December 2010 #20105612831H
Trade and other payables BNE=E2E5K
to third parties H i & 5 BR 3K 2,101,464 — 2,101,464 2,101,464
Trade payable to a fellow FER—FR M B A A
subsidiary 2B ZER 1,389,863 — 1,389,863 1,389,863
Advance from Innovation and REEIFREES
Technology Fund ZER 398,480 — 398,480 398,480
Amount due to an intermediate FEA — R R R AR A 7
holding company Z5RI8 134,000 — 134,000 134,000
Bank borrowings PITIER 3,991,011 - 3,991,011 3,991,011
8,014,818 — 8,014,818 8,014,818
Repayable
on demand Between Total
or within 1 month to undiscounted Carrying
Company RAH one month 1year  cash flows amount
ARERD
R—EAR —BRZE REH
iz — & HeRBAE FELHE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2011 R2011512831H
Amount due to an indirectly e — IR R A B
owned subsidiary B A 7 IR 510,000 — 510,000 510,000
Other payables H A & 5 308 10,756 — 10,756 10,756
520,756 — 520,756 520,756
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7. Financial Instruments (Continued) 7. @I AR
(c) Fair value of financial instruments (c) 2WMIAND $ fE
The management of the Group considers that the AEBEBERA HeUWHKMNK
carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and Wt 3R FIT S B A 2K ;‘% BHEmEE
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated FepaERAEERAZENA
statements of financial position approximate their FEREA
respective fair values.

8. Revenue 8. U=
The Group is principally engaged in the design, development AEBFZEREEXNEBNRT
and sales of ICs. Revenue represents the amount received BMEE - WnEAEBRFARH
and receivable for goods sold and services provided by the EEVNRHEREE W R EKR S EEH
Group at invoiced value, net of returns and discounts, during BHEEE UWHKREERTHN - A&
the year. An analysis of the Group’s revenue recognised ERFEAEBERRESTOT :
during the year as follows:

2010

20104

HK$

BT

Revenue from sale of ICs HESEKEEH W= 44,712,839 61,574,452
Revenue from provision of IC packaging RS RGN

service g 8,072,881 —

Revenue from provision of ASIC Service R HEASIC iR 75 A9 U 2= 6,348,000 4,491,100

59,133,720 66,065,552

Segment Information

The chief operating decision maker considers that the
Group’s activities constitute one operating segment as all of
the Group’s operations relate to the design, development
and sales of integrated circuits. The management of the
Group makes decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment on a group basis. It was
determined that the Group has only one single reporting
segment, being the design, development and sales of
integrated circuits. As a result, no segment information other
than the entity-wide disclosure is presented.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from major products and
services is set out in note 8 above.

2 & E R

BRFEZERRERR BRAKEM
BEHHER HEMBEESRKE
BAR SASRENEDEK —EE
—REDH - AEENEEENER
DEMRBIGZEEELEMIELR
E-AEERERA-—HEE—Z2®/D
B BIERE - FEAMEE %Wa%
I% REEERELDREN X

HOBER

AEEBRBIZERNMRENKRED
HrER 3K EES ©
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9. Segment Information (Continued) 9. oHERE
Information about major customers EREETEEFHNER
The Group’s revenue from customers which accounted for REMAEEBRZEI0%HIA EHE
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue are as follows: PHAEBRKZWNOT :
2010
20104
HK$
BT
Customer A =5 H 18,097,898 36,334,516
Customer B 2E 7, 8,052,131 7,460,798
Customer C ®PA N/A*
E A 7,555,389
26,150,029 51,350,703
* The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the * HERRIETEAER LK Z S
total revenue of the Group. 10% -
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9. Segment Information (Continued) 9. oHWERE)
Geographical information i 15 &

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong. The AEENEBURES - B K H 15
geographical location of customers is based on the location EDRBEFOMAEMTE - @
of the customers, irrespective of the origin of the goods or MEWMKRER R - 5L E - K
services. The geographical location of the non-current assets EREZRHEMS @ EREEE MMM
is based on the physical location of the assets, in the case of ENREEENERMEIME - A&
property, plant and equipment. The Group’s revenue from B B & DK BINARE R I
external customers and information about its non-current A REBEHEERDEENEHWT :
assets by geographical location of the assets are set out

below:

KBS REF Kz

Revenue from external customers

2010
20104F
HK$
I
Hong Kong (place of domicile) E8 (FBEH) 17,965,445 12,392,242
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong and Taiwan R AEEEE LA E 30,293,399 44,767,267
Germany = 2,142,178 300,485
Korea 14 4,201,300 4,792,598
Russia B & 2y 3,532,721 2,678,072
Taiwan = 998,677 1,129,429
Others H it — 5,459
59,133,720 66,065,552

Non-current assets FREEE
2010
20104
HK$
T
Hong Kong (place of domicile) S8 (FEH) 598,267 745,649
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong and Taiwan FETNEEEBRAE 85,314 272,415
Taiwan = 2,311,569 1,253,583
Korea (5 447,753 278,753
3,442,903 2,550,400
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10. Finance Costs 10. @& KA
2010
20104F
HK$
7 TC
Interests on: AR & IEBH B -
Bank borrowings wholly repayable ARAFAZEE
within five years ERIRITER 8,640 62,636
Finance lease BEHRE — 2,776
8,640 65,412
11. Income Tax Expense 11. FiBBHEX
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss RERTFEIANAEHEX
2010
20104
HK$
& JC
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEAE I8 — BB FS T
provision for the year FERE 2,052,694 2,448,337
Deferred tax (note 27) IEE IR (M a£27) 149,919 701,984
Total income tax expense recognized in FERBmPERR
profit or loss for the year FriSHi L 42 %8 2,202,613 3,150,321
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, Hong REE2011F % 2010F 12 A31 H IEF
Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% based B EREBEZFEENMETERE R
on the estimated assessable profit for that year. 1216.5% 8 B = 1E H B S A 1S B -
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11. Income Tax Expense (Continued) 11. IBHEX#E)
Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss (Continued) REZHEIANFEHBEX (&)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the FENMESHRBAIMEGES 2K
profit before tax per the consolidated statements of ROBRFADRFEERAT ¢

comprehensive income as follows:

2010
20104
HK$
75 TT
Profit before tax K B4 B & T 12,998,725 19,093,166
Tax at the applicable income tax rate of 16.5% 1% 16.5% & 8 FA FT 15 &
BRI 2,144,790 3,150,372
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for FALIA M = AR S8
tax purpose Mg 58,382 —
Tax effect of income not taxable for MBIEN S |ARTBAD
tax purpose T 765 52 2 (559) (51)
Income tax expense for the year FEEMESHEX 2,202,613 3,150,321
Income tax expense recognized in other comprehensive REMZEREHERNAESHHBEX
income
2010
20104
HK$
T
Deferred tax (note 27) IR E IR (M a227)
— Arising on revaluation of property, plant —REWE  BEK
and equipment RiEBEEMG — 34,118
Total income tax expense recognized FERAEMEEREER

in other comprehensive income for the year B P15 T 5 2 AR &R — 34,118
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12. Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived at
after charging:

Auditor’s remuneration
Cost of inventories recognized as an expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Net foreign exchange loss
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments

— salaries, bonus and other benefits

— performance based sales commission

— retirement benefits scheme contributions
— staff welfare

And after crediting:
Bank interest income
Reversal of allowance for impairment
on trade receivables

12. FE®R

FEO® A B R

A2 BB 3 B

BRESFAINFEERA

ME - BEMRREINE

PE 3 &5 1R % FE

BEREEMEMEIRA

—%E A REMER

—RERBAREEN
HEME

— R RAE B E I K

—B8IRA

BEHA

AT FI B IA

P 35 P L
BERE

Annual Report 2011 &

2010

20104

HK$

BT

400,000 90,000
36,551,314 39,253,838
1,254,778 1,105,912
36,639 12,432
4,618,332 3,262,305
— 261,000
134,312 111,736
11,746 11,077
3,386 312
17,132 19,198
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13. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid 13. EEREEREFHMALTHME

Individuals

(a) Directors’ remuneration (a EE=M2
The emoluments paid and payable by the Group to AEBRFRNERARRZSZE
each of the directors of the Company during the year EXNREMBOSFBOT

are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2011
HZ2011F12A31BLEE

Sung Tak Chan Chan Chi
Li Kwei  LiuLoi LiuKam HuiKing Wing, Sun  Kwong,

Chung Ying Lung Chun Leo Kwong Dickson
FHE BRE B4R HFEE REXR BREX REX

BT BT
Directors’ fees EENE — — — — 2,466 2,959 2,466 2,466 10,357
Other emoluments: Hoft A
Salaries, allowances and ¥4 28K
benefits in kind g YiEF 750,600 529,631 81,250 — — — — — 1,361,481
Incentive bonus (Note) HEE) M TEAT
(ftat) 250,000 - — — — — — — 250,000
Retirement benefits BRI B
scheme contributions i 12,000 12,000 3,750 — — — — — 27,750
1,012,600 541,631 85,000 — 2,466 2,959 2,466 2,466 1,649,588
Year ended 31 December 2010
BE2010F12A31BILFE
Chan Chi
Li Kwei LiuLoi  LiuKam HuiKing SungTak ChanSun  Kwong, Ko Yin
Chung Ying Lung Chun Wing, Leo Kwong  Dickson Wai Total
THE BRE B&E LR RER BEX KREX =ER =X
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
T BT BT BT BT T BT BT BT
Directors’ fees EEXoka = - = — = = = - —
Other emoluments: H N
Salaries, allowances and e EER
benefits in kind EYEF 579,400 437,054 — — — — — — 1,016,454
Discretionary bonus BB IEAL — 80,000 — — — — — — 80,000
Performance based sales AR AE%EH
commission HEMRS — 120,000 — — — — — — 120,000
Retirement benefits BRI B
scheme contributions 3 12,000 12,000 — — — — — — 24,000

591,400 649,054 = = = = = — 1,240,454
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13. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid 13. EERIEERTFMALIHNME

Individuals (Continued) (%)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (Continued) (a) EE=EM<E)
Note: Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Ftat - BEHA SR EZERELER
MiniLogic HK and Mr. Li Kwei Chung on 3 January 20111 ASBRI Y WiReE ' =
2011, Mr. Li was entitled to a bonus amounting to %t 4 12011 45 A] & 15 250,000
HK$250,000 for the year of 2011. The entitiement to the HEICHTEAL - BIS AT IEAL A
aforesaid bonus is vested on Mr. Li's continuity to work EHEAEELEER2011EFE1A1H
with MiniLogic HK for the year from 1 January 2011 to Z2011FE12A31HNFEEEE
31 December 2011. RMEI SR T -
(b) Five highest paid individuals’ remuneration (b) EEEEFHALHMS
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included AN &£ @ #H E20114F K2010F 12
two directors of the Company for each of the years ABALEEEFNALER
ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, details of whose FMALERARBMEBES
emoluments are included in the disclosures in above. HEHMEBIALXHES - F
The emoluments of the remaining three highest paid N BT =R MATNF
individuals during the year are as follows: BT
2010
20104
HK$
BT
Salaries and other emoluments e K& E b 75 1,384,980 1,076,640
Discretionary bonus )15 1 4L — 30,000
Retirement benefits scheme contributions & /K& F 5+ 2| £t 5% 35,880 35,595
1,420,860 1,142,235
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13. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid

14.

15.

16.

Individuals (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals’ remuneration (Continued)
The emoluments of the above highest paid individuals
were within the following bands:

Not exceeding HK$ 1,000,000

No remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the
directors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office during the year (2010: nil). In
addition, none of the directors of the Company has waived
any emoluments during the year.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company includes a loss of HK$340,231 (2010: nil) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

Dividends
No dividends were declared or paid during the year ended
31 December 2011 (2010: nil).

Earnings Per Share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2011 is based on the consolidated
profit attributable to the owners of the Company
approximately HK$10,796,000 (2010: HK$15,943,000) and
on the basis of 150,000,000 shares (2010: 150,000,000
shares) in issue, being the number of shares in issue
immediately after the completion of capitalization issue as
detailed in note 28(d), throughout the years.

13.

S8 3@ 1,000,000 7T

14.

15.

16.

EEROERSHFMALTHHE

(%)

b) EERESFMALHOME (E)
PR ESHEMA LOHFMN FIA
T8E :

Number of individuals

AH
2011 2010
2011 £ 20104
3 3

FRA AKEBYTERAARREIMNES
FEEREHFMALXNHMESERE
By AN A S B AN A 5% B B ) 22 B 3k
ERBEI B FE B (20104 « &) o UhoN -
BMEARTAEENFAREEMAFH
B o

AATER AELET
ARARMEABLEEEFNBEER
QN ) B 7 ¥R 3 B BB 2 340,231 IT
(20104F : #&) Z B8 »

B’E
HE2011F12A31BIEEE  TES
IR 3 SRR A B (2010 4F : £&) o

BREF

HE2011F12A31B L FENF K
EXRBFDBEARREES AEMLE
& % A #710,796,00078 JT (20104 :
15,943,000 70 ) M B @ F E B & 17
150,000,000 A% f% 1 ( BN 40 B =% 28(d) Fir
M BEEENMEEITEXNED BT
f% 15 2 B ) (20104F : 150,000,000 % f%
BIEHE -
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16. Earnings Per Share (Continued)
No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Group
did not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during the
year ended 31 December 2011 and 2010.

16. BRER (&)
AR AREERE ZE20114F K20105F 12
A 318 I F[Z 3 & F ] B B8 E H &
LB M EZYSFRESEF -

17. Property, Plant and Equipment 17. ¥ BERR®E
Furniture
Computer Office and Motor Leasehold
equipment Instruments equipment fixtures vehicle improvement Total
BAZE BER HE
BHRE - | R RE RE MELE &t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Valuation H1E
At 1 January 2010 R2010F1 A1 H 319,192 5,085,265 39,239 71,541 166,410 150,500 5,832,147
Additions NE 68,735 2,035,956 4,898 7,074 — — 2,116,663
Disposals & (19,501)  (120,000) — (1,495) — —  (140,996)
Adjustment arising on revaluation Eff5IEMNRE (299,026) (4,557,521) (36,837) (64,620)  (148,910) (150,500) (5,257,414)
At 31 December 2010 K2010612H31H 69,400 2,443,700 7,300 12,500 17,500 — 2,550,400
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1A1H 69,400 2,443,700 7,300 12,500 17,500 — 2,550,400
Additions NE 104,157 2,032,594 — 10,530 — — 2,147,281
At 31 December 2011 R20114E12H831H 173,657 4,476,294 7,300 23,030 17,500 — 4,697,681
Accumulated depreciation 2itifE
At 1 January 2010 R2010F1A1H 304,011 3,405,785 34,200 66,805 166,410 139,042 4,116,253
Charge for the year FRIFTE 31,278 1,060,150 3,629 4,605 — 6,250 1,105,912
Eliminated on disposals A B 5 5 (19,501)  (120,000) — (1,495) — —  (140,996)
Eliminated on revaluation A 2 17k B 3 85 (315,788)  (4,345,935) (37,829) (69,915)  (166,410) (145,292) (5,081,169)
At 31 December 2010 R2010F12A31H — — — — — — —
At 1 January 2011 R2011E1A18 = — = — — — =
Charge for the year FAHE 71,101 1,150,004 5,830 10,343 17,500 — 1,254,778
At 31 December 2011 R2011F12A31H 71,101 1,150,004 5,830 10,343 17,500 — 1,254,778
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2011 R2011%F12A31H 102,456 3,326,290 1,470 12,687 — — 3,442,903
At 31 December 2010 R2010F12A31H 69,400 2,443,700 7,300 12,500 17,500 — 2,550,400
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17. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued) 17. ¥ BERRZHE @
The Group'’s property, plant and equipment were revalued as AKEER2010F 12431 B ME - &
at 31 December 2010 by an independent firm of surveyors, B REEH BB ST EBHERER
Norton Appraisals Limited, by reference to market evidence AR AT2RETmERBEENR I
of recent transactions for similar assets. Surplus arising on RGN BREBEMELHEGB HEGBELEM
the revaluation which has been credited to the asset BAEEEGRENEE206,7808
revaluation reserve amounted to HK$206,780. In addition, as JLo AN AR EfE - —%383,0257%
a result of the revaluation, an impairment loss of property, TR BE R&RERESEBRE
plant and equipment of HK$383,025 was recognized in profit Z2010F 12 A1 H L FE MBS HE
or loss for the year ended 31 December 2010. R o

Had the Group’s property, plant and equipment been carried WMAREBRYE HE N&EZEH UK AKR
at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying values of M EE T E AR - BIRA20114F 12 A 31
property, plant and equipment as at 31 December 2011 and H&2010612A3MB MW= - KE &k

31 December 2010 would have been stated as follows: BRENEMESIERNAT

2011 2010
2011 20104

Accumulated Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Cost depreciation values Cost  depreciation values
B Rt e REE AR B i BREE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT B I BT BT
Computer equipment B ER S 472,583 362,572 110,011 368,426 315,788 52,638
Instruments TH 9,033,815 5,482,542 3,551,273 7,001,221 4,345,935 2,655,286
Office equipment WAERME 44,137 41,458 2,679 44137 37,829 6,308
Furniture and fixtures HKEREE 87,650 73,097 14,553 77,120 69,915 7,205
Motor vehicle RE 166,410 166,410 —_ 166,410 166,410 —
Leasehold improvement &Y ¥ £ & 150,500 148,417 2,083 150,500 145,292 5,208
9,955,095 6,274,496 3,680,599 7,807,814 5,081,169 2,726,645
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18. Inventories 18. &E&
2010
20104
HK$
BT
Raw materials R 8 1,063,951 3,965,483
Work in progress ER S 867,728 1,427,551
Finished goods X @ 2,177,020 4,178,286
4,108,699 9,571,320
Less: Provision for slow-moving and W R RBRTT ERE
obsolete inventories (136,459) —
3,972,240 9,571,320
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, no inventory was carried R 20114F K2010F 12 431 H » W ETF
at net realizable value. B AR E R E AR -
19. Trade Receivables 19. EREZERRK
2010
20104F
HK$
BT
Trade receivables e E F R 20,380,653 13,748,576
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B SR B B — (1,236,136)
20,380,653 12,512,440
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19. Trade Receivables (Continued) 19. BEWE SRR (&)

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the balance of trade
receivables included bills discounted with recourse of HK$nil
and HK$3,893,760 respectively. Bills receivables discounted
with recourse represent bills receivables already discounted
to a bank with recourse with a maturity period of 90 days.
The Group remains liable to repay the full amount of the
discount proceeds to the bank until the full settlement of
related bills are received by the bank. Accordingly, the
Group recognized the full amount of the discount proceeds
as liabilities as set out in note 26.

The Group normally allows a credit period ranging from “cash
on delivery” to 90 days to its trade customers as at 31
December 2011 and 2010. The following is an aged analysis
of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts at the
end of each reporting period, presented based on the
invoice date:

0-30 days 0-30H
31-60 days 31-60 H
61-90 days 61-90 H

More than 90 days 890 H

Amounts included in trade receivables at 31 December 2011
and 2010 related to both IC sold and services performed
under ASIC services contracts and invoiced to those
customers.

ﬁem1¢&2mo¢1zﬂmEﬂJﬁwﬁ

BRI LR B IR LA BB e 2 = Bh
ﬁmﬁ%n%ﬁg%m&&wwm@
Lo MEBPERNF AR EKRE
BREEMBITUALBHENTEAEE
B FE R Z= 45 - ﬂ%a%%%oﬁﬁﬁ
TEERIEEEENGEE S5
AEENEETRBRTEEZHER
Fri5 30 IE - A Itk > a0 ff sE26FT 4t © A
SERREHARMSEHRELREE -

R 20114F K 2010F 12 A31H * A& E
BEAEESRPREHEIEIMNRIE

WHHMEEH - U TERRZHREHK
MEWE SRR (EMNBRRERER B
BRER DT IRIBEBREREHZET

2010
20104

HK$

&I

8,462,065 4,733,818
4,360,688 3,726,008
3,788,140 2,158,068
3,769,760 1,894,546
20,380,653 12,512,440

20114 K 201012 A31 8 » %I A JE
WESERFHRBEEKNEEKHEE R
RIBASICRIE & QIRBERE A E - I
EMZERFPHAEESR-
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19.

Trade Receivables (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 39% (31
December 2010: 71%) of the total trade receivable was due
from the Group’s largest customer during the year. The
Group has implemented policies that require appropriate
credit checks on potential customers before granting credit.
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties. The Group’s exposure and
credit ratings of its counterparties are monitored by
management. The maximum credit risk of such financial
assets is represented by the carrying value of asset.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an
internal credit assessment process to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed
by the management regularly. In determining recoverability
of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in
credit quality of the trade receivable from the date credit was
initially granted up to the end of the year and no impairment
is necessary for these balances which are not past due.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$9,511,674
and HK$8,255,943 which are past due as at 31 December
2011 and 31 December 2010 respectively for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired is as follows:

0-30 days 0-30H
31-60 days 31-60 H
61-90 days 61-90 H
More than 90 days #8890 H

19.
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EWE SRR &)

AR FENRNERKRE SR REEN39%
(20105F12 A31H : 71%) kK B A &
ENmASFE AUAEEEBREF
EERB - ASEEH EHE Bk
RHEEMYBERFPH#ETEEREE
BE - AEENBRXAEEEREFEERN
MEFHETRS MEEENSE
EASEAEHNRAREESF SO
EEFR - HECREENESREE

B EEEMNKREE -

REREMHETL 28 AEBEER
N EEFEEFUIEHEEBEERTP
MEEEZMAEEFNEERSE -
RTEPNEEREMEEEE MR
A e EEE EWE B AR A IR AR E
B - AEEZEEAVARHEREER

EFRHEEREESRFEEERN
TREE AZFRABHNGERE
FIELRE

WAREEREIKE ZERFEHPH
EEREMEAS X A95116748 T &
8%%%%mf%m F RERIER

%Um2m1¢1zﬁ3ﬂ3&2mo¢12
)5131 B mAEREEABRES
BIELEE AEEWERZSTEH
BAEEMEER -

AEEMBE@BERRENERE S
BRRERER D AT AN T

2010

20104

HK$

BT

213,042 489,647
2,716,283 3,713,682
4,544,320 2,158,068
2,038,029 1,894,546
9,511,674 8,255,943
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19. Trade Receivables (Continued) 19. BEWWE SRR (&)

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
related to a number of independent customers for whom
there is no recent history of default. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. Majority of the Group’s trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired as at 31 December 2011
has been received after 31 December 2011.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

B8 BB R R E R E UK B 5 IR SR e
HITEERACHNETBELRER,A
M- REBEBELR TEEERLEER
EHRERGB REREEEXTE
BERANE MERDHER B2 HE
@ - R2011F 12 A31H 2 B HIB KR
ENAEBABHEKESERER
2011412 H31 H & WO -

BRESERRERBERENN RS
mT

2010
20104F
HK$
7T
Balance at beginning of the year F YK R 1,236,136 1,255,334
Reversal of allowance during the year FREERED (17,132) (19,198)
Amount written off during the year F R $H & 1 1] U B 5118
as uncollectible " & 58 (1,219,004) —
Balance at end of the year FRER — 1,236,136

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade
receivables are individually impaired trade receivables with
an aggregate balance of HK$ nil and HK$1,236,136 as at 31
December 2011 and 31 December 2010 respectively, which
related to two customers that were in financial difficulties. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

TIAEWE ZRKRREEF T E R
BERENEKRE SRR R2011F12
HA31H &2010% 12 A31 H AR & 4D
Bl A Z 7 T & 1,236,136 78 7T+ JY B2 /Y
HEMBRRENEF A ANEEW
ERZEEREREEMER R -
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20. Deposits and Prepayments 20. RERBENRE
2010
20104F
HK$
7T
Deposits for purchase of raw materials KERMEZES® 429,515 2,347,660
Deposits for purchase of instruments RETAZES 432,978 252,720
Rental and utilities deposits for HEME HERKEZS
leased properties 124,595 124,595
Prepayment of listing expenses LRI 2 ENHIE 8,379,537 —
Prepayment of sample charges Bk &z BN RIE 119,036 70,262
Others Hh 696,692 32,389
10,182,353 2,827,626
21. Bank Balances and Cash 21. RITEHRREAS
Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term ROERMASBEERS TR S
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less MEERINBEBEA=M@AKIUT
which are held with financial institutions and carry interest at RABR TS H R SR BER -
prevailing market rates. The average effective interest rates 20114 k2010612 H31H - K &
of the Group’s bank balances are 0.02% and 0.01% per RITERNTFTHERFENES R A
annum, as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 respectively. 0.02% £2.0.01% ©
22. Trade and Other Payables to Third Parties 2 ENFE=ZBEZRHEMEMNK
b
2010
20104
HK$
T
Trade payables to third parties ENE=522E85KX 1,808,133 1,998,156
Other payables and accruals HoAth jE 1 & FEET 3R IE 945,592 193,308
2,753,725 2,191,464
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22. Trade and Other Payables to Third Parties (Continued) 2. ENE=2ESZRAEMENSIE

g
(%)

An aging analysis of the Group's trade payables to third NEBRERIRBREZQ[ B2 B FEN

parties, presented based on the invoice date at the end of F=EBZ2ESEFNERONAT

the year, is as follows:

2010
20104
HK$
&I
0-30 days 0-30H 1,714,956 1,723,673
31-60 days 31-60 H 1,917 175,423
61-90 days 61-90 H — —
More than 90 days A0 H 91,260 99,060
1,808,133 1,998,156
23. Trade Payable to a Fellow Subsidiary 23. EN—RHEZAMBARNZE SRR
=k
TA

The entire Group’s trade payable to a fellow subsidiary, Kith AEBRGFRZEZAHZSEN—
Electronics Limited, is aged more than 90 days based on the MRRNBARGBEE FHERRA AW

invoice date at the end of the year. 2HE SRR KRR BIEA -
2010
20104F
HK$
&I
More than 90 days HiB 90 H — 1,389,863
— 1,389,863
The trade payable to a fellow subsidiary is unsecured and EN—EREHNBARNE SRR

interest-free. EA R 5B o
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24. Amount Due to an Intermediate Holding Company 24.
Name of intermediate holding company FREZERATRE
Kith Holdings Limited BEEBEERAF

The amount due to an intermediate holding company
represents expenses paid on behalf of the Group. The
amount is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment.

The amount due to intermediate holding company has been
fully settled in the year of 2011.

25. Advance from Innovation and Technology Fund 25.

The advance from the Innovation and Technology Fund is a
form of Government assistance provided to a subsidiary of
the Group by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region under the Small Entrepreneur
Research Assistance Programme. It is provided on a dollar-
for-dollar matching basis to finance the Static LCD COG
Driver project and the LCD Information System Project being
undertaken by the subsidiary. The advance is non-interest
bearing and has been fully settled in April 2011.

26. Bank Borrowings 26.

Bank advances under discounted bills LA B 38 38 /9 B 3R %
with recourse, unsecured
Bank overdraft, unsecured

RITE (BEH)

HRIGHRIT B R (EE ) —

Annual Report 2011 &

BN—BFBERARZRE

2010
20104
HK$
7 TC

— 134,000

FEft — R AR AR R FRIEERAN
SEXNWNER - ZRBTEET -
% B R R R e

BN —HMPREERQ2AHNREER
2011 F2HBFE °

RERFRFEEESZER
REBFERHESZERDE B
1T & IR AR 45 /N AL 1 A 9T & Bh At
gl AE B —FEH B A RRERTH
B —REAR - Zer B REBEEAM
7 MY B A &) P 1T B9 8% AELCD COG &
FRIEE RKICDEAM R4 IEB M
B & - BRI AETF B I E R20114F
4B 2HEE -

2010
20104
HK$
7 TC

3,893,760
— 97,251

— 3,991,011
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26. Bank Borrowings (Continued) 26. SRITERE)
Bank advances under discounted bills with recourse NEEAENEREZBRNENRTE
represent the Group’s bank borrowings secured by bills RIEM FE19PT #E 5 LA 7] — [ SR 1T A &L
discounted to a bank with recourse as disclosed in note 19. BB R T R AL IR Z i /e A A
They are repayable within 90 days from the date the EBIETER ZEERERELR
advances were made and carry prevailing market interest N2 BREFT0HANEE - WARITH
rate. The average effective interest rate on bank advances HHMEEE - BR2010F 124318 - LA
under discounted bills with recourse is 6.75% per annum as BEPEMNMBEEENGANRITER
at 31 December 2010. WFHEBRMNEREF6.75% °
27. Deferred Tax Liabilities 27. ELEHREBEAE
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognized RAEBRLGE T IEMR N KR ERHIE
in the Group’s consolidated statements of financial position EHB(EE) ABEHAKI M A RE
and the movements thereon during the year are as follows: RERNEFT -
Revaluation
of property, Accelerated
plant and tax Unused
equipment depreciation tax losses Total
EMYE- MESLE REBAB
BMERRZE weE KE 8 &5t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Balance at 1 January 2010 R 2010F1 A1 8 & & 6k — 248,066  (595,257) (347,191)
Charged to profit or loss FARBERMBRR
for the year — 106,727 595,257 701,984
Charged to other comprehensive F A A E b & E W 25
income for the year R 34,118 — — 34,118
Balance at 31 December 2010 R2010F 128318 &
and 1 January 2011 2011 F1 A1 HE % 34,118 354,793 — 388,911
Charged to profit or loss FARBE=MER
for the year — 149,919 — 149,919
Balance at 31 December 2011 R2011412H31H
B 45 54 34,118 504,712 — 538,830
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28. Share Capital 28. B
Number of
ordinary shares Nominal value
EERRAHE HE
HK$
T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BROIBTHEBER
Authorized: SEE
Upon incorporation (note (a)) LM A L 1& (HT 7t (a)) 3,800,000 380,000
Increase during the year (note (c)) R (K EE(Cc)) 9,996,200,000 999,620,000

At 31 December 2011 R2011%F12H31H

Issued and fully paid: BEZETRBE -
Upon incorporation R EE A AL 18
(note (a) and (b)) (Kt7%(a) % (b))
Issue of shares on Reorganization (note (b)) REAREITIRMD
(K17 (b))

At 31 December 2011 7R2011F12 831 H

(a) The Company was incorporated on 31 March 2011 in
the Cayman Islands with an authorized share capital of
HK$380,000 divided into 3,800,000 shares of HK$0.10
each, of which one share of HK$0.10 was allotted and
issued.

(b) On 20 December 2011, the Company, Minilogic BVI
and the then shareholders of MiniLogic HK entered into
a share swap agreement, pursuant to which Minilogic
BVI acquired the entire issued share capital of
MiniLogic HK from the said shareholders in
consideration of, (i) Minilogic BVI crediting as paid up
the initial one nil paid share of Minilogic BVI held by the
Company; (ii) the crediting as fully paid at par the initial
one nil paid share of the Company and (iii) the issue
and allotment of 3,799,999 shares to the said
shareholders, all credited as fully paid.

(a)

10,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
1 —

8,789,608 380,000
3,800,000 380,000

AR A R2011E3 8318 » H
ERHEFIMAL ZFEBRAEAAR
380,000/ JT ' % /43,800,000 %
FREEC10E TG » E
1A% A {B0.107% 7T /9 iR 15 B e 3%
K BT o

R2011F 128208 © & A &)
Minilogic BVI & 8 &l = Bt &) & B
BREFTZ—fhBmRipE &Rt
Minilogic BVI A L it A% 5= U B 1
BlERM a2 BITRA  KE
(i) Minilogic BVI# 28 A &) BT $5
Minilogic BVI#] 15 — & 7 &1 I 5%
D ARSI AER : (i) ARAF
Mg —RARBR TR D IREEA
BRI Agh R ¢ K (iii) A it i 3R B
77 K B2 33,799,999 f% 2 B A BR 7
RERORG -
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28. Share Capital (Continued)

(c)

(e)

Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 23
December 2011, the authorized share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$1,000,000,000 by the creation of additional
9,996,200,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each.

Pursuant to a shareholder resolution passed on 23
December 2011, conditional on the share premium
account of the Company being credited by
HK$14,620,000 as a result of the Placing as mentioned
and defined in (e) below, an aggregate of 146,200,000
Shares, by way by capitalization of the sum of
HK$14,620,000 standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company, would be issued,
allotted and credited as fully paid at par to the
Shareholders as appearing on the register of members
of the Company as of 23 December 2011. Upon the
Capitalization, the issued share capital of the Company
would become HK$15,000,000 divided into
150,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each.

On 19 January 2012, 50,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each were issued by way of Placing at a price
of HK$0.80 per share (the “Placing Price”) for cash
consideration of HK$40,000,000. The excess of the
Placing Price over the par value of the shares issued
was credited to the share premium account.

29. Reserves

(a)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 40 to 41 of the financial statements.

Merger reserve arose as a result of the Reorganization
taken place on 20 December 2011 which represents
the issued shares and share premium of MiniLogic HK
upon group Reorganization and the nil-paid issued of
380,000 shares of the Company which credited as fully
paid.

28. A& (#)

(c)

29. &

(@

R #E2011F 12 H23H @ B 1
BREREZFER ANAQAEEXK
%8 41 9,996,200,000 % f% ™
BH0.108 ;T W X @ MR 4§ H %
F A% 2 §3380,0007 T i i1 &=
1,000,000,0005 7T °

iR E20114F12 A 23 H B @ 1 %
RAZBE  FARAKRG®ER
AR E (20T X (e) T il &2
E ) T 28 #E BR 14,620,000 7% 7T 14
AR EE B AR B & E R
¥ BR %8 14,620,0007% 7T # 7t & 72X
B 5 X\ R2011F 12 A 23 H
HZONARR B RE B ME R EIZE
8 % 17 & B2 3 & $£146,200,000
AR AERE KD
TEAB ARARIKNEBETR
N ¥ &15,000,0005 7T D A
150,000,000 f% & A& E {E0.10/8 7T
B A% 15 ©

R20129F1819H * AR Al 5 i@
fid & 7 = 32 5 §20.807% JT 89 (B 1%
([ B2 & {8 |) ¥ 7750,000,000 f%
% E{E0.107%8 7T /9 I 8 A% LA #2 BR
3§ & A {840,000,000/% 7T ° B &
BB EBTRMAENIMNE
ARG ER -

EE
AEEAFEREFOREEE
KB 2 TN AY WK FE 40
EMENGREREEHRA -

2011 F12 8208 A EA M E &
WeEdFE AR EESEEE
WAl SRR TR &K
5 % (B LA 2 28 1A B) LA R BUR% 3 5
= 3 17 #7380,000 0% A BR 7l & B
WG, o
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29. Reserves (Continued) 29. f#fE (@)
(b) Statement of change in equity of the Company for (b) &AL FEHZE211F12H831H Lt
the year ended 31 December 2011 FENEZEH R

Share Accumulated

capital losses Total
;&S RAETEE &5t
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 January 2010, R20106F1 18 »
31 December 2010 201012 A31H &
and 1 January 2011 20111 H1H — — —
Loss of the year FEEBE = (340,231)  (340,231)
Other comprehensive income Hi 2wl — — —
Total comprehensive income ZH =B = (340,231)  (340,231)
Transactions with owners HEEAZRS
Allotment and issue of consideration ARG B B N B TR (B
shares and credited as fully paid R0 K A BR 5 1E 8 R
for share swap (Note 28 (a-b)) (Kt 728 (a-b)) 380,000 — 380,000
380,000 — 380,000
As 31 December 2011 R2011FE12A31H 380,000 (340,231) 39,769
30. Retirement Benefit Scheme 30. RIKB@EA S

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$20,000.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. Total
contributions paid or payable to the MPF Scheme by the
Group amounted to HK$134,311, HK$111,736 for the years
ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 respectively, which had
been recognized as expense and included in staff costs in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

AEEARBAEMBEEKEEZER
BEESRFNELTESFTEENTH
BHlEAEeE([RESFE -
BESEE N —(EARBLETABTE
B EREHENREGE - BRIERE S
g -AEBEREEERSEZEENS
A B5% M ET S E 3 m
R A& A A B A20,000/% T ° A&
SELBERDANGES - 8E ST E
MEEERASBENEESRFAR B
& HIEFAED o NEBERE Z=2011
F N2010F12A831H EF E M BB
SETEENRENNEREES A A
1343118 L R111,736B 1 ° 2 & &
HEBRATHEREEE2EKER
R AE TR -
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30. Retirement Benefit Scheme (Continued)

31.

32.

The Group has no other material obligation for payment of
retirement benefits beyond the contributions as described
above.

Operating Lease Commitments

At the end of the year, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of leased properties which fall due as
follows:

—FR

Within one year
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable
by the Group for its office premises and a warehouse in Hong
Kong. Leases are negotiated for an average term of 1 to 3
years with rentals fixed at the date of signing of lease
agreements and do not include contingent rentals.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, six employees of the
Group have completed the required number of years of
service under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the
“Ordinance”), to be eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable to
make such payments where the termination meets the
circumstances specified in the Ordinance.

If the termination of all such employees met the
circumstances set out in the Ordinance, the Group’s liability
as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 would be approximately
HK$140,700 and HK$185,000 respectively. No provision has
been made for these amounts in the consolidated financial
statements as the directors of the Company are of the view
that these amounts are not expected to crystallize in the
foreseeable future.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2011 and
2010.

E_FERERF
BEEEMTE

30.

31.

32.

RIKBAEE ()

AREBR BB ERN XEEMERKR
B X AR KRR B AE
REHEERE

RER AEERERYEANUTR
BIARELCEHENARRKENRE

HFEE ERHBBEROT

2010

20104

HK$

BT

301,343 353,165

82,000 184,543

383,343 537,708

REHENREIEHEASEREN
REENRLREEMREERND
He FEBNHEEFAR/E ==
FREHEHZEHETHEHE R
TEEXAEE -

ZREE

20114 K 2010F 12 8318 » A& H
EANBEEEZKIBEDRBEREGH
([ZEBDBEREFHME E R
RREEAREERBERES - A&
ERRTEZ GO MEENBATA
EH BB -

meTE Ll B R IERB T A ZIK
Bl FT & ZI B 1B - A AN & B R 20114
K2010F12A31BEME ED B4 A
140,7007% 7t % 185,000/ T » KN & &
WERELESERESWBREPIE
HEE EBAAAREERATEHRE
SRR A BRI ER -

BrLA EFT# B O - ANEE 2011 F &
2010F 12 A1 B WEEME KRS AE

& e
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33. Related Party Transactions

In addition to the balances with related parties set out in the
consolidated statements of financial position and respective
notes, the Group had the following material transactions with
its related parties during the year:

(a) Transactions with a related party

Purchase of goods from a fellow subsidiary
— Kith Electronics Limited
(“Kith Electronics”)

The purchase price for the goods supplied by Kith
Electronics to the Group was determined on the basis
of the purchase price paid by Kith Electronics to a
major subcontractor of the Group plus make up rate of
6%—8% for the extended credit term granted by Kith
Electronics to the Group.

The above transactions have been discontinued since
June 2010.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including the amounts paid to the Company’s
directors as disclosed in note 13(a) and one of the
highest paid employees as disclosed in note 13(b), is
as follows:

Short-term employee benefits
Retirement benefits scheme contribution

MR B E A
RARTE IR

Annual Report 2011 &

33. MEAEXRS
BRRERE MR R R B R M E AT

HEEANLT 2RISR

AEBR

FRNEHEBEALTAEUNTERRS :

(a)

A — [ [F) 22 BfY /8 & B 3R B
EY—BHRETFAR
A ([BRET])

(b)

E-FHEAIHNXRS

2010
20104F
HK$
7 TC

- 2,855,369

REHETFRAANEEHREEYHN
REEDNEBHRETRALEE—
AEEDBEEINNEEESM
MEHETERAEBENEER
KM IARREE6% E8% °

Fai 5B 8201096 A #4& Ik -

FTEEE AE NN
AEBFTEZEEEAENEHE &
LM sE13() T IR E B X T F
ARAREBZNEBRE a0k
F1BL)MEEN RS HMES
Z—HESBEMAT

2010
20104F
HK$
BT

1,731,854
36,000

2,334,631
39,750

2,374,381 1,767,854
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34. Events after the Reporting Period 34, HEHRERERE
On 19 January 2012, the Company was listed on the Growth R2012F1 F19H A AR FEBEE
Enteprise Market of the Stock Exchange by way of placing B R TRl AR £ - 3 A & A% 0.80
and completed the placing of 50,000,000 shares at a price of 7 JT #Y {8 8 52 AX BE & 50,000,000 A% Bk
HK$0.80 each. The proceeds in gross was HK$40,000,000. 9 o BT 18 3} I8 42 58 /3 40,000,000 7 T ©
35. Particulars of the Subsidiaries of the Company 35. XAFMKEBARFE
Percentage of
Place and date of ownership interest/
incorporation/ Issued and voting power/
Name of subsidiaries registration paid up capital profit sharing Principal activities
& Ml AR 3L iR 3t B RmERER BRER/
MEARERE Q=R BERTRBERE AEEFNED R TEEK
Direct Indirect
BE %
Minilogic Investment Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share 100% — Investment holding
27 May 2011 of US$1
RERLHES 1REEIET 100% — REERK
201145827 H RN
MiniLogic Device Corporation Hong Kong 7,651,200 ordinary — 100% Design, development
Limited 12 January 2000 share of HK$1 and sales of ICs
MElEE AR A A BB 7,651,200 % G AR H — 100% &K=t HEREES
200041 A 12H E1ETH EER X & B
The balance with subsidiaries are unsecured, non-interest BB ARNESRAEERR RER
bearing and repayable on demand. AR ERERE -
36. Change of Company Name 36. EREXRATNER
Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 27 April, 2011, the L2011 FE4 A27 B i@ @8 2 % Al R
Company’s name was changed from “Magalogic Holdings = AR AR A B2 B Magalogic
Limited” to “Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited ZZ&l&S Holdings Limited ] ¥ 2 4 [Megalogic
BIEEBR AR Technology Holdings Limited 7= &l & &l
SEABRAF] -
37. Authorisation of Issue of the Consolidated Financial 37. BEHBRGEMBRE
Statements
The consolidated financial statements were approved and Z£Ex 20 R201243 H23 #t & I &%
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March T B4R E ISk o

2012.
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